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Barbacane, Thornton & Company LLP . -
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS"REPORT 200 Springer Building

3411 Silverside Road
Wilmington, Delaware 19810

December 6, 2010 ‘
T 302.478.8940
F 302.468.4001
wiww.btcpa.com

Members of City Council
City of Salisbury
Salisbury, Maryland

We have cudited the accompanying financiat statements of the govermnmental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Salisbury,

Maryland, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively compirise the City's basic -
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of

the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on

our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Sfafes
of America and the sfandards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing -
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier Generat of ihe United States. Those standards require that we plan
and petform the audif to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
materict misstatement, An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financiai statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

. statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 1o above present falidy, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the govermmental activities, the business-type activities, each mdjor fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cily of Salisbury, Maryland, as of June 30, 2010,
and the respective changes in its financiol position and ifs cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
vear then ended, in conformity with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of
America, C -

in accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6,
2010 on our consideration of the City of Salisbury’s infematl control over financial reporting and on our

" . fests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other

" matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of ourt testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not fo provide an opinion on the intemal
controt over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the resuits of our
audit.

The management's discussion and anailysis and budgetary comparison information are not required parts -
of the basic financial statements but are- supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepled in the United Stoles of America.  We have applied cerlain limited procedures which
consisted principally of inquides of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary Information. However, we did not audit the information and,
“accordingly, express no opinion on it. ‘

BARBACANE
THORNION
P &OOMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



Members of City Councl|
City of Salisbury

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the, City of Salisbury, Maland's financial statements faken as a whole. The other
supplementary information listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis
,andisnota requ;red pait of the financial statements. The other supplementary information, except forthe
statistical information, listed in the table of contents has been subjected fo the .auditing procedures
, czpplled in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the financial sfctemenis taken as a whole. The.other statistical information has not been
subjected to the quditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingty,

we express no opinion on them.

Y

Ldicane Tkt G LLP
'BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY LLP . . .

...



This section of the annual financial report of the City of Salisbury (the "City") presents our discussion and analysis of the City's
financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the discussion and
analysis along with the other information in this report, including the notes to the financial statement.
provided an overview of the basic financial statements, selected condensed financial data and highlights, and analysis of the

City of Salisbury, Maryland

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS.- UNAUDITED

x

City's financial position and changes in financial position.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City's total combined net assets were $98,838,895. Net assets of our govemmental activities increased by

In this section, we have

$888,752 (or 2.5 percent) while net assets of our business-type activities increased by $2,698,743 {or 4.5 percent),

_ The General fund reported expenditures in excess of revenues of $1,048,161 bringing its fund balance this year to
$10,292,454. Revenues were less than budgeted, but expenditures were also less than budgeted. Revenues were

lower in a large part due to funding cuts from the State of Maryland for Highway User Taxes and Police Aid Grants.

the FY 2010 budget, it was assumed that the City would use surplus. The final amount of surplus use budgeted for FY

2010 was $1,953,685. The loss of $1.0 million was less than budgeted.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts—management’s discussion and
analysis (this section), the basic financial statements and required
supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

The first two statements are entity-wide financial statements that
provide both long-term and short-term information about the City's
overall financial status,

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus
on individual parts of the government, reporting the City's operations
in more detail than the entity-wide statements.

The governmental funds statements tell how general government
services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for

“future spending.

Propriétary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial
information about the activities the govemment operates lke
businesses.

Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial

relationships in which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for
the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.

The financial statements also Include notes that explain some of the
information in the financial statements and provide more detailed

“data. The statements are followed by a section of required

supplementary information that further explains and supports the -
information in the financial statemenits.

Figure A-1, Required Components of the
City’s Annual Financial Report

_____________________

Max&d‘d Bastc Required
Diseassion Financlal Supplementary
aned Statements . Information
STTT s mmmmmmmmme
A 1
Entity-wide Fund Hares
Flnanclel Financlai to e
St 5 2
Statements

Summary <> Detail

Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this

annual report are amranged and related to one

another.




City of Salisbury, Maryland
Management's Discussion & Analysis
{(Unaudited)

Figure A-2 summarizes the major

Figure A-2, Major Features of the City's Entity-wide and Fuad Financial Statements

‘ Fund Statcinents .
features of the City's financial Dpeos Entitv-wide Governments) Funds Proprietary Funds ¥iduciary Fands
statements, including the portion of Eaore Apmcy's pvemed | The activities of the City | Activities the City Tnstanees in which the
. ' 1 (except fiduciary funds) that are not proprictary or  |operate similar to private City is the trustee or
the C]ty govemment they cover and Scope and the Agency's component | fduciary businesses: self insurance agent for someoae else’s
the types of information they contain. ™ units = resorees
The remainder of this overview ’

section of management’s discussion
and analysis explains the structure
and contents of each of the
sfatements. :
Entity-wide Statements Y Mng
- |economic resources focus

Acegunting basis

and measuremen!

The 'emi'!y—,wide statemeﬁts report
information about the City as a whoie
using accounting methods similar to

those ~used by private-sector
compahies. The statement of nef
R Ly

assets mFIUdeS all Of . the Al\ revenues and Revemues for which cash All revenues and expenscs  [AH revenues and
government's assets and liabilities. expenses during year, is received during or soon | duriog year, regardless of  [expenses during year,
Al of the current year"s revenues and regardlss ufwh.m cash after the end of the year; 'when ¢ash is reccived or chud!t:sa ofwh.encash
expenses are accounted for in the f:;f: A o is received or paid Spendiies whea goods P is reccived or prid
statement {_)f acti\_rities rega_rd!ess Of  joformation recetved and paymént is .
when cash is received or paid. due duting the year o

s0oh thereafter .

The two entity-wide statements
report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets---the difference between the City's assets and liabilities—
is one way to measure the City’s financial health or position.

& QOver time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are an indicator of whether its fi nancnal health is improving or
© deteriorating, respeciively. -

e To, .assess the overall health of the City, one needs to consider addntlonal nonfinancial factors such as changes in the
City's tax base.

The entity-wide financial statements of the City include the Governmental activities. Most of the City's basic services are
inciuded here, such as general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, culture and recrestion, and
interest on long-term debt. Property taxes and charges for service most of these activities.

RS

Fund Finanmal Statements

The fund #i nanmal statements prov;de more detalled information about the City's most sngmfcant funds---not the C|ty as a
whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for
particular purposes. . . o

*  Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

¢ The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage moeney for particular purposes or to show that it is
properly using certaln taxes and grants.

The Clty has the followmg kinds of funds: - . .

» * Governmental funds—Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) how
cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances lefl at year
end that are available for spending. Consequently, the govemmental fund statements provide a detaited short-term
view that helps ihe reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of
the entity-wide statements, additional information is provided at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on
the subsequent page, that explains the relationship {or differences) between them.

*  Proprietary funds—Proprietary funids generally are used to account for services for which the City charges customers —
either outside customers, or internal units or departments of the City. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues
and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with the fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds
are charges for customer services including: water and sewer fees, Mitchell Landing Apartments rents and Septage
treatment fees. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include cost of services, administrative expenses and
deprematlon on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meetmg this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses. Proprietary funds prowde the same type of information as shown in the entity-wide financial
statements.

._5'



City of Salisbury, Maryland
Management's Discussion & Analysis
(Unaudited}

The City maintains the following type of enterprise funds to account for the operations of the City's business-type
aclivities: water and sewer services and Mitchell Landing Apartments, all of which are considered {o be maj[)r funds of
the City, and several other nonmajor fee-supported activilies. .-

- ®  Fiduciary funds—The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds. It is also responsible for other assets that—
because of a trust arrangement—can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The City is responsible for ensuring that
the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the City's fiduciary activities are reported
in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. These activities are
excluded from the City's entity-wide financial statemenis because the City cannot use these assets fo finance its -
operations. .

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS AWHOLE
Net assets. The City's combined net assets were $ 98.8 million.

Table A-1
CITY'S NET ASSETS
{in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2010 N 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

CURRENT ASSETS: '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 124113 § 13708 - § 2,871 $ 3226 $ 14,984 $ 16,934
Accounts receivable, net 3,149 ; 2,341 “2,119 1,743 5,268 4,084
Due from other governmental units 795 - 305 1,391 392 2,186 ’ 897
Internal balances {(1,108) (802) 1,108 802 - -
Other - - 1 14 1 14
Iriventories 796 518 708 646 1,504 1,164

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 15,745 16,070 8,198 6,823 23,943 22 893
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash’ 5,352 6,616 5,422 2.058 10,774 8,674
Bond issuance costs, net of amortization 136 144 53 48 189 182
Capital assets af cost 65,662 60,523 141,888 137,648 207,550 198,171
Less accumulated depreciation {21,556} {19,730) [38,468) {36,853) {60,024) {56,583)
' TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 49,594 47553 108,895 102,901 158,489 150,454
TOTAL ASSETS ‘ 65,339 63,823 117,093 109,724 182,432 173,347
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,204 1,735 1,202 840 2,406 2,575
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable 2,378 2,398 3,062 2,875 5,440 5,373
Cther 799 766 57 52 856 818

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,381 4,899 4,321 3,867 8,702 8,766
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Compensated absences 1,370 1,164 248 196 1,616 1,360
Post-employment benefits 3,249 7™ 838 186 4,087 977
Bonds, notes and capital ieases payable 19,828 21,147 49,360 45,846 69,188 66,993

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 24,447 23,102 50,444 46,228 74,891 69,330
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,628 28001 - 54,785 50,095 83,593 | 78,096
NET ASSETS: ‘ -
invested in capital assets, net of reiated debt 21,91 19,021 56,243 53,872 78,144 72,893
Restricted 6,985 7,108 178 160 7,163 7.268
Unrestricted ‘ 7,625 9,493 5,907 5,597 13,532 15,000
TOTAL NET ASSETS ‘ $ 36511 §$ 35622 $ 62,328 $ - 59,629 $ 98,839 § 95,251

Net assets of the City's governmental activities increased by 2.5 percent to $36.5 million due to the addition of capital assets
funded i part by cash and investments, partially offset by increases in noncurrent liabilities. Net assets of the City's business-
type activities increased by 4.5 percent to $62.3 million due to capital asset addifions also funded in part by cash and
investments.

The City's total revenues were $50.6 million. A significant portion, 46.6 percent, of the City's revenue comes from property
taxes. (See Figure A-3.) A portion, 36.5 percent, comes from charges for services and 5.8 percent comes from operating
grants. The total cost of afl programs and services was $47.0 million.

-B-



City of Salisbury, Maryland

Manaqgemenit’s Discussion & Analysis

{Unaudited)

Figure A-3
City of Salisbury

Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2010

"7 Misc.
2.5%

Property Taxes
46.6%

Charges for

Investment

Services
36.5%

Operating
Grants
5.8%

Program revenues.
Charges for services
Operating grants
Capital grants

General revenues/transfers:

_ Taxes
Investment earnings
Operating transfers
Miscellaneous

Eamings
1>/
Capital %Ja{‘n’ts
9.0%
Tabie A-2
SOURCES OF REVENUES -
- - ~{in thousands of doliars)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities - Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 5694 $ 6070 $ 12,760 $ 11,652 $ 18,454 § 17,722
2,910 3,742 . - ; - 2,910 3,742
2,435 1,172 2,126 . 54Q ) 4,561 1,712
23,307 22,455 _ - - 23,307 22,455
44 285 27 158 71 - 443
{1,281) (865) 1,281 865 . -
1,278 546 - - 1,278 546
$ 34,387 $ 33,405 $ 16,194 $ 13,215 § 50,581 $ 46,620

TOTAL REVENUES

Table A-3 presents the cost of each of the City’s functions as well as each function’s net cost {total cost less fees generated by
the activities and intergovernmental aid). The niet cost reflects what was funded by state revenues as well as local tax dollars.

.-

Govemmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works )
Recreation and cuiture
Miscellaneous
Interest on long-term debt

Total govemmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer
Other

Total business-type activities

Total

Table A-3

NET COST OF CITY FUNCTIONS

(in thousands of dollars})

Total Cost of Services

S

Net Cost of Services

2010 2009 % Change 2010 2009 % Change
$ 2,804 $ 3524 20.4% $ 59 § 547 -89.2%
19,462 18,352 6.0% 15,767 13,363 18.0%
7,544 5.924 27.3% 3,397 3,562 -4.6%
2,182 1,900 9.6% 1,729 1,334 29.6%
477 435 9.9% 478 434 10.1%
1,029 926 11.1% 1,029 926 “11.1%
33,498 39,151 . 22,459 20,166 =
13,153 12,337 6.6% {1,529) 320 577.8%
342 386 11.4% 139 212 S38.4%
13,495 12723 (1,390) 532 ‘
$ 46,993 $ 43,874 $ 21,069 $ 20,698




City of Salisbury, Maryland

Management's Discussion & Analysis
(Unaudited)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
(in thousands of dollars}) .

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 20069

3 889 - § 2254 $ 2,699 $ 491 $ 3,588 § 2745

Governmental Activities

Property tax rates were held constant befween FY 2009 and FY 2010. The cost of all governmental activities this year was
$33.5 million. However, the amount that the City's taxpayers paid for these activities through taxes was only $23.3 million,
Some of the cost was paid by those whoe directly benefited from the programs, $5.7 million, or by grants and contributions,
$5.3 million. The general government cost had a 7.5 percent increase between years, which can be attributed fo overall cost
increases.

Business-type Activities

Revenues of the City’s business-type activifies were $16.2 million in FY 2010 vs. $13.2 million in FY 2009 (refer to Table A-2)
while expenses were $13.5 million in FY 2010 versus $12.7 million in FY 2008. The revenue increase is due to the City
receiving $2.1 milfion more in capital grants related to the wastewater treatment plant and water storage projects in FY 2010.
Overall expenses increased slightly due to general cost increases. .

FINANCIAL ANALYS!S OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund batance of $17.3 million, $1.2 million lower
than the previous year. At year end, the general fund had a fund balance of $10.3 million, $1.0' million lower than the previous
year. This has been attributed to lower tax revenue, but partially offset by lower expenditures. During the FY 2010 budget
- process, the City planned to use sumplus for some capital outtay purchases versus borrowing additional funds through lease
purchase or bonding. The capital improvements fund balance decreased by $0.1 million to $3.7 million. This is due primarily
to projects and capital equipment purchases from prior year debt proceeds. The fund balance for other governmental funds
remained constant. Revenue collections offset expenditures for the year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlightg '

Over the course of the year, the City revised its budget several times. The final expenditure budget for the general fund was
$34.3 million versus an original budget of $32.3 million. The majority of the variance is due to encumbfances carried forward
from FY 2009. Actual expenditures were $3.1 million below final budget amounts. Most departments were under budget
during the year. One department with a negative variance was the fire department. The variance for this department was due
to the use of lease proceeds received and recorded in FY 2009 ($1.7 million) and the expenditures taking place in FY 2010.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assefs

Atthe end of 2010, the City had invested $207 5 million in a broad range of capltal assets, mc!udmg tand, equiprment, buildings
and vehicles.- (See Table A -4).

Table A-4
CITY'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals Total %
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 Change
- Land and art $ 8,298 $ 8198 $ 1,879 $§ 1,579 $ 9877 $ 9777 1%

* Buildings and improvements 24,315 23,807 - 18,395 18,209 42,710 42016 = 2%
Improvements, non-buildings 8,321 6,828 27,061 25,784 35,382 32612 - 8%
Machinery and equipment 18,628 16,895 12,622 12,287 31,250 29,182 7%
Zoo animals . 36 36 - N 36 36 0%
Construction-in-progress 6,064 4,759 82,231 79,789 88,295 84,548 4%

Totals at historical cost 65,662 60,523 141,888 137,648 207,550 198,171 5%
Total accumulated depreciation 21,656 19,730 38,468 36,853 60,024 56,583 6%
Net capital assets $ 44,106 $ 40,793 $ 103,420 $ 100,795 $ 147,526 $ 141,588 4%

-8-



City of Salisbury, Maryland
Manaqerient's Discussion & Apalysis -
(Unaudited)

This year's major additions were the purchase of several new fire fighting vehicles and the completion of a renovation and
shoreline-stabilization project at a box culvert, water main and sewer main upgrade. The remainder of the increase is due to
the upgrade to the wastewater treatment plant, which is still under construction at year end, as well as construction of a new
water tank, a storm drain upgrade and a shoreline. stabilization project which were stilt under construction- at year end.

The City's fiscal year 2011 capita! budget consists primarily of the ongoing upgrade of the wastewater treétrnent plant and
work on a sewer lift station project. More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in the noles to the
financial statements. .

Long-term Debt .
At year end, the City had $74.6 million in bonds and notes outstanding, an increase of $2.2 million. The City issued $2.6
million in general obligation bonds in FY 2010, as well as $2.8 million in obligations with the Maryland Department of the
Environment to upgrade a lift station. Additional funds were drawn on the $42.0 million obligation with the Maryland
' Department of the Environment for the wastewater treatment plant upgrade and expansion. The table below reflects only the
‘amount drawn on the obligation. This is ofiset by the current year's principal payment. As the upgrade and expansion
continues, the remainder of the obligation will be drawn. The City did not enter into any new lease purchase obligations in FY
2010. The City is limited to a maximum generat obligation bond mit of $110 million. The City has recently issued its debt
through private placement or use of lcan programs with the State of Maryland, thus it does not go to the credit rating agencies.
More-detailed information about the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.

A Tt B

Table A-5
CITY'S LONG-TERM DEBT
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals Total %

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 Change
Leases payable 0§ 7374 3 8431 . § 233" 0§ 319§ 7607 § 8450  -10%
Bonds payable’ ., . 14510 . 15323 50,807 47120 65317 62,443 5%,
Mortgages and notes payab!e 321 _ &1 _‘1,382 1,382 1,703 1,473 i 16%.
Total Bonds and Notes Payable  § 22005  $ 23,545 5 52422  § 48821  § 74627  § 72,366 3%,

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

.+ Construction activity in the City has continued to .be slow, corresponding to the nationwide slump in the housing

. market. There is still some continuing construction activity in the City, with a mixture of residential and commercial,

but it is significantly below the levels seen in this decade. In-FY 2010, the City collected $186,017 in bmldmg permit

revenues and in FY 20086, the City collécted $309, 834 in building permit revenues. .

= Salisbury University has purchased several commercial real estate properties within the City. These sales have
decredsed the revenue base with these properties becoming nontaxable.

e  With the slowdown in the economy, the City has more vacant commercial .property, which can fransiate into lower
personal property taxes,.as well as potentially decreased assessed values on real property.

» The majority of the City's real»propeft& was reassessed for FY 2011, Due to economic conditions at the time, the
overall assessable base has decreased from prior years and the City will receive less real property tax revenue.

«  Salishury University is still undergoing an expansion. They are building additional student housing and a new School
of Business building. This expansion does not directly affect the assessable base, but the institution generates
related growth,.much of which will be taxable.

« The State of Maryland continued the revenue cuts for Highway User Taxes and Police Aid Grants for FY 2011, For
the near future, the City does not expect this-funding to refum.

« The local {(Wicomico County) unemployment rate as of September 2010 was 8.2 percent, up by 0.5 percent from a
year ago. The State of Maryland has a 7.5 percent rate and the natlon as a whole has a 9.6 percent unemployment
rate.



City of Sé!isbury, Maryiand
Management's Discussion & Analysis
(Unaudited)

The City's general operating fund spending will again decrease in the 2011 budget. Budgeted 2011 expenditures are
$29,476,214 cormpared to the final adjusted 2010 budget of $34,266,212. The City did not raise taxes for fiscal 2011. The
future revenue outlook is uncertain with the nationwide housing slump and the very slow recovery in general economic activity.
Additionally, the City has limited options for generating revenue and the City is approaching its tax rate limit. The City must
also he prepared for continued revenue reductions from State of Maryland revenue sources. As a result, the City will need to
continue to limit the growth of expenses in order to stay within projected revenues and other operating resources.

As for the City's business-type activities, the water and sewer fund budget will decrease in the FY 2011. Budgeted 2014
expenditures are $16,659,727 compared to the final adjusted 2010 budget of $20,248,566. Sewer rates were increased for FY
-2011 (15 percent). The City is continuing to upgrade the wastewater treatment plant, which will eventually cost arcund $77
.million. During fiscal year 2006, the City borrowed $42 million related to this upgrade. The interest rate on this debt is 0.4
percent (see note 6 for further discussion). The current design of the wastewater freatmient plant is not operating as required.
As such, the City has undertaken a corrective action plan process and estimates for additional costs refated to the plant are
approximately $50 million. At this time, it is unknown how the City will finance the comrective action plan. Discussions are
-being held with the State of Maryland Department of Environment as well as locking at the City's borrowing capacity.

. CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general
overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receivas. If you have guestions

about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City's Director of Internal Services in the Finance
) Division, 125 Narth Division Street, Room 103, Salisbury, MD 21801 or visit the City's website at www.ci.salisbury.md.us.

- 10 -



ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Savings grid deposits
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other gavernmental units
Internal balances
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Totaf Current Assels
‘Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investment pool
Bond issuance costs, net of amortization
Construction-in-progress
Land and arf
Capital assets at cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

~Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to other governmental units
Deposits and advance paymenis of taxes
Compensated absences
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable

Total Current Liabllities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Post-employment benefits

Bonds, notes and capital leases payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilittes -
Total Liabilities -
& i

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net‘of related debt

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Special revenue
Unrestricted S, :
Total Net Assets : '

TOTAL LIABIL_iT,IES AND NET AéSETS

' ‘

[

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010

Govemmentat Business-type
Activities Activities

$ 11,869,325 $ 2,859,199
243551 12,179
3,148,648 2,118,608
794,735 1,390,652
(1,108,464) 1,108,464
- 1,200
796,159 707,557
15,743,054 8,197,049
5,351 529 5,422,038
136,466 52,597
6,063,765 82,230,472
8,298,050 1,578,963
51,300,658 58,078,647
{21,556,012) (38,467,458)
49 554,456 108,895,259
$ 65,338,410 $ 117,093,208
$ 1,203,888 $ 1,201,435
3,150 5,850
643,625 24,076
152,270 27,330
2,378,084 3,061,824
__ 4381017 __ 4320515
1,370,432 245,963
3,748,544 838,818
19,827,717 49,358,716
24,446,693 . 50,444 498
28,827,710 54,765,013
7,538,845 56,243,327
5,593,859 177,795
3,291,010 v o
21,986,986 5,907,073
36,510,700 62,328,195

% 65,338,410

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

o
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$ 117,093,208

“
'

Total

$ 14,728,524
255,730
5,267,346
2,185,387

1,200
1,503,716
23,941,903

10,773,567

189,063

88,204 237

9,877,013

109,379,305
(60,023,470}
158,489,715

$ 182,431 618

5 2405323
9,000

667,701
179,600
5,439,908

8,701,532

1,616,395
4,087,363
69,187,433
74,891,191
83,505,723

63,782,172

3,871,654
-3,291,010
27,894,059

-7 98,838,805

§ 182,431,618
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&

ASSETS
Cash
Investment pool
Savings and deposits
Taxes receivable

l.ess aliowance for uncollectibles
Pue from other governmental units
Sundry accounts receivable

Less allowance for uncollectibles
Inventory

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
' Cash overdraft

Accounts payable and accrued expénse's

Due to other funds
Due to other governmental units

Deposits and advance payment of taxes

Deferred revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for inventory and prepaids

Reserved for encumbrances

- Reserved for specific purposes
Operating reserve
Unreserved

Undesignated - special revenue funds
Designated for subsequent year

expenditures
Undesignated
Total Fund Batances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

i, CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
‘BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
B JUNE 30,2010

Capital
General Improvements Nonmajor
-Fund Fund Funds _ Total
$ 9,225,605 $ 1,183,440 $ 3,639,071 $14,048,116
343,008 2,510,419 898,982 - 3,752,409
243,551 - - 243,551
2,202,754 - - 2,202,754
(623,307) - - {623,307)
307,078 - 487,657 794,735
2,980,617 - 84,430 3,065,047
(1,495,848) - - {1,495,846)
796,159 - - 796,159
$ 13,979,619 $ 3,603,859 $5,110,140 $22,783,618
$ - - . % - $ 579,671 $ 579,671
1,067,680 - 130,995 1,198,675
- - 1,108,464 1,108,464
- 3,150 - - 3,150
643,625 - - 643,625
1,872,710 - - 1,872,710
3,687,165 - 1,818,130 5,506,295
796,159 : - - 796,159
1,254,647 3,292,656 130,559 4,677,862
1,805,022 401,203 - 2,306,225
400,000 - - 400,000
- - 3,160,451 3,160,457
225,520 - - 225,520
5,711,106 - ‘ - 5,711,106
10,292,454 3,693,859 - 3.201,010 17,277,323
5 13.979,619 $ 3,693,859 $5,110,140 $ 22,783,618

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
. different because:

~ Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
" therefore-are not reported in the fund financial statements, but are reported in the
-governmental activities of the statement of net assets. .

Refunded and new deht and issuance costs resulted in deferred charges and
credits which will be amortized over the life of new debt but do not represent
" current rights. ‘

Certain revenues that do not provide current financial resources are reported as
deferred income in the fund financial statements, but are reported as revenue
in the governmental activities of the statement of net assets.

Somie liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the furd financial statements, but are reported in the governmental
~ activities statement of net assets. Those liabilities consist of:

Bonds, notes and capital leases payable $ (22,205,801

}
Compensated absences (1,370,432}
Peost-employment benefits (3,248,544)
Accrued interest on bonds {157,483)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ 17,277,323

44,106,461
136,466

. 1,972,710

(26,982,260)

_$ 36,510,700



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

REVENUES

Taxes

Other revenue
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES .

Current.
General government
Public safety -

" Public works

Recreation and culture
Nondepartmental

Capitat outtays

Debt service: - e

_Principal ’

Interest : i

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out
Debt proceeds

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE [N FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

T

Capital
General Improvements Nonmajor
Fund Fund Funds Total
$23,239,095 $ - $ - $23,239,095
2,961,262 - - 2,961,262
1,491,278 2,338,407 1,493,131 5,322,816
2,402,768 - 1,602,573 4,005,341
- 22,952 48,465 71,417
30,094,403 2,361,359 3,144,169 35,599,931
2,234,855 - 251,800 2,486,655
16,404,916 - - -16,404,916
4,861,611 - 1,544,440 6,406,051
1,756,612 - - 1,756,612
477,413 - - 477,413
1,976,950 3,245,431 356,034 5,578,415
" 2,048,250 - 53,400 2,101,650
999,708 - 40,108 1,039,814
30,760,313 3,245,431 2,245,782 36,251,526
~ (665,910) (884,072) 898,387 (651,595)
(382,251) - (899,213) (1,281,464)
- 762,140 - 762,140
(382,251) 762,140 (899,213) (519,324)
- (1,048,161) T (121,932) (826) (1,170,919}
11,340,615 3,815,791 3,291,836 18,448,242
$10,292454 - - $3,693,859 $3,291,010 $17,277,323 ‘

£

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND!TURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

- Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because: :

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the state-

ment of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful

lives and reported as depreciation expense. n the current period, these amounts
“are: )

Capital outlays $ 5,578,415
Disposal of fixed assets (284,621)
Depreciation expense " (1.980,648)

Bond and capital lease proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds; however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets. In the current period, bonds and capital leases of this amount were issued.

- Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the City's
fiscal year ends, they are not considered "availabie” revenues and are deferred in
the governmental funds. Deferred revenues increased by this amount this year.

Governmental funds report repayment of debt principal as an expenditure. In
contrast, the statement of activities treats such repayments as a reduction in
long-term liabilities.

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not reguire the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. These activities consist of:

Increase in compensated absences (206,570)
'Increase in post-employment benefits (2,457,690)
increase in bond issuance costs T (7,904)
Decrease in accrued interest payable 11,016

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ (1,170,919)

3,313,148

(762,140)

68,163

2,101,650

(2,661,148)

$ 888,752



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Investment pool
Savings and deposits
Accounts receivable
.Due from other govemmental units
" Due from other funds '
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash -
Restricted investment pool..
Bond issuance cost, net of amortization
Capital assets:
‘Construction-in-progress
.. Land
Buiidings, equupment and
improvements
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Dug in one year: -
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable
. Accrued payroll -
Due to other governmental units
Provision for compensated absences
‘Bonds, notes and capital leases payable
Deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Due in mare than one year:
Bonds, notes and capital leases payable
Post-employment benefits
Provision for compensated absences
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities .
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted {Deficit)
Total Net Assets (Deficit)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

¥ E

JUNE 30, 2010

Enterprise Funds

Water Mitchell
and Sewer Landing Nonmajor
" Fund Fund Funds Total
- $ 5,848 $ 21,116 $ 26,964
12,492,034 - 2,181 12,494,215
- 12,179 - 12,179
2,106,954 3,125 8619 2,118,698
1,301,080 - 89,672 1,390,652
1,108,464 - - 1,108,464
- 1,200 - 1,200
707,557 - - 707,557
17,716,089 22,352 121,488 17,859,929
- 177,795 - 177,795
5,244,243 - - 5,244,243
52,597 - - 52,597
82,129,161 - 101,311 82,230,472
149,953 114,010 1,315,000 1,578,963
54,830,782 1,454,319 1,793,546 58,078,647
{36,370,260) (629,581} (1,467 617) (38,467 ,458)
106,036,476 1,116,543 1,742,240 108,895,259
$123,752,565 $1,138,895 $1,863,728 $126,755,188
$ 9577477 $ Co- $ 84,503 $ 0,661,980
958,060 8,883 108,604 1,075,547
125,258 630 - . 125,888
- - 5,850 " 5,850
27.330 - - 27,330
3,061,824 - - 3,061,824
12,302 11,774 - 24,076
13,762,251 21,287 . 108,957 13,982,495
47,977,909 1,381,807 - 49,359,716
838,819 - - 838,819
245,863 - - 245,963
49,062,601 1,381,807 - 50,444,498
62,824,042 1,403,094 198,957 64,426,993
54,944,146 (443,059) 1,742,240 56,243,327
- 177,795 - 177,795
5,983,477 1,065 (77,469) 5,907,073
80,927,623 (264,199) 1,664,771 62,328,195
$123,752 565 $1,138,835 $1,863,728 $126,755,188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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,CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services

Penalties

Tapping ghargeé and connection fees
Assessments -

Sundry income

Pretreatment monitaring fee

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES”
Salaries

Personnel benefits )
Professional and skilled services
Supplies

Other operating expenses
Equipment

Bad debt expense

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating income (loss) before deprectation
Depreciation o 7

NET OPERATING INCOME {L.OSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES}
Intergoverrimental revenue

Operating transfers in -

Interest incorme

interest expense i

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR

Enterprise Funds

Water Mitchell
and Sewer .anding Nonmajor
Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 12,169,870 $ 159,289 $ 44,465 $12,373,624
74,278 - - 74,278
10,790 - - 10,790
15,400 - - 15,400
109,179 - - 109,179
176,555 - .- 176,555
12,556,072 159,289 44,465 12,759,826
3,755,737 - 19,214 3,774,951
2,071,340 15,088 2,998 2,089,426
1.870,788 48,709 47,026 1,966,523
1,209,091 31,801 16,751 1,257,643
1,949,123 37,165 33,052 2,019,340
52,340 - - 52,340
- 898 - g8
10,908,419 133,661 119,041 11,161,121
1,647,653 25,628 (74,576) 1,598,705
1,574,494 C 3019 Ts3eta 7 Tigedizr
73,159 (10,391) {128,190} (65,422)
2,125,878 - - 2,125,878
1,108,464 - 173,000 1,281,464
25470 1,596 - 27,066
(670,243} - - {670,243)
2 589,669 1,596 173,000 2,764,165
2,662,728 (8,795) 44,810 2,698,743
58,264,895 {255,404) 1,619,961 59,629,452
$ 60,027 623 $ (264,199) $1,664,771 $ 62,328,i 95

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers-

Payments to employees

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Federal and state grants recsived
Internal activity - receipts from other funds

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES- -

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
. ACTIMITIES: . .

Proceeds from bonds and notes

Principal paid on bonds, notes and capital leases

intérest paid on bonds, notes and mortgages

Bond issuance costs

Payments for capital acquisitions

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTIVITIES ‘

CASH FILOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest and dividends )

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR -

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CPERATING ACTIVITIES:
" Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
" provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
" Receivables, net
Due from other funds
‘Prepaid expenses
Inventories -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Post-employment benefits
Deposits
'NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Enterprise Funds

\Water and Mitcheil
Sewer L.anding Nonmajor
Fund Fund Funds Totai
$11,879,454 $ 156,471 $ ' 52,585 $12,088,510
(5,600,719) {120,692) {80,943) (5,802,354)
(5,173,767) (15,088} (22212 (5,211,067)
1,104,068 20,691 {50,570) 1,075,089
1,127,332 - - 1,127,332
1,108,464 - 173,000 1,281,464
2,235,796 - 173,000 2,308,796
. .
6,578,195 - - 6,578,195
(2,977,956) . - "(2,977,9586)
(670,243) - - (670,243}
{2,409) - - (2,409}
(4,184,263) (6,600) {101,311) {4,292,174)
" (1,256,676) {6,600) {101,311) __{1,364,587)
25,470 - 1,596 . 27,066
25,470 1,596 S 27,066
2,109,558 16,687 21,118 2,146,364
| 15,626,719 180,135 2,178 15,809,032
$17,736,277 - $ 195,822 § 23,207 $17,955,396
$ 73,159 $(10391)  $(128,190)  § (65422)
1,574,494 36,019 53,614 1,664,127
(370,218) (2,002) 8,120 (364,100)
{306,400) - . (306,400)
12,436 - - 12,436
{61,375) - 1 . (61,364)
(470,438) (2.119) 15,875 {456,682)
653,310 . - 653,310
- 816 . (816)
$ 1,104,968 $ 20,691 $ (50,570) $ 1.075,089

L+



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2010

Health Private-
Care purpose Agency
Trust Trust Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investment pool . $ - $ 102,708 $ 266,554
‘Investments 969,485 ) - -
Accounts receivable - - 100,778
Total Assets ' 969,485 102,708 367,332
LIABILITIES
. Accounts payable - 42,152 - ' -
. Deposits - - 97,144
- - ~~Due-to other governmental units- - - coe T - 25200077
Total Liabilities ) - 42,152 349,153
NET ASSETS |
‘Reserved for fund purposes $ 969,485 § 60,556 ' $ 18179

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

ADDITIONS
Interest
Gain on sale of investments

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Operating expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Health
Care .
Trust

$ 11,978

75,104

87,082

17,697

17,597

69,485
900,000

_$ 969,485

$

$

Private-
purpose
Trust

110

110

20,131

20131

(20,021)

80,577

60,556



‘NOTE 1

NOTE 2

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY

The City of Salisbury, Maryland (the “City”) was established in 1732. The City is govemned by ¢
‘Mavyor and a board of five Council Membets elected by the voters of the City.,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial stalements of the City have been prepared in confotmity with generally accepted

-Qecounting principles ("GAAP") as applied to local government units. The Governmental

Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
govemmental accounting and financial principles. The City has elected not to apply Financial
Accounting Standards Board ('FASB*) Accounfing Standards Codification Guidance issued after
Novernber 30, 1989, io ifs business-type aciivities. The most significant of the City's accounting

- policies are described below.

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has

considered ali potential component unlts. The decision of whether to include o potential
component unit was made by applying the criteria sef forth in the GASB standards related to
component units. The basic - but not the only - criterion for including a potential component unit
Is the exercise of oversight responsibility by the City's elecied officials. Based upon the
application of these criteriar, the accompanying statements include the financial transactions of
the Sdiisbury Zoo Commission, Inc. {the “Zoo”). The operations of the Zoo are included in the
genetal fund.

Bauisis of Preseniation

The City's basic financial statements consist of entity-wide statements, including a statement of
net assels and a staterment of activities; and fund financial statements, which provide o more
delailed level of financial information, ’

ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City as @
whole. These statements include the financial activities of the City. The statements distinguish
between those activities of the City that are governmenial and those that are considered
business-type activitiss, '

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-
type activities of the City af year end. The statement of activities presents ad comparison between
direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the Cify’s govermnmental
activities and for business-type activities of the City. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or depariment and, therefore, clearly identifiable
to a parficular function, Program revenues Include charges paid by the reciplent of the goods or
services offered by the program; grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
opetational or capital requirements of a paricutar program; and interest eamed on grants that is

‘reguired to be used to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as

program revenues dre presented as general revenues of the City, with cerain limited exceptions,
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NOTE 2

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [cont'd)

. The comparison of dlreci expenses wrih program revenues identifies the extent to which eoch
" business segment or govemmeniol funcﬂon is self-financing of draws from general revenues of

the City.
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . .

During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities in
separate funds in order fo aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.
Fund financlal statements are designed to present financial information of the City of a more
detailed level. The focus of govermmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on majes
funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajeor funds are aggregated
and presented iy a singie column. Fiduciary funds are reponed by type.

Fund Accounting

The City uses funds fo maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as afiscal
and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds:
govemmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

* GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. Govermnmmentat fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds
according tothe purpose for which they may or must be used. Current labilities are assigned o
the fund from which they will be paid. The difference beiween governmen’rol fund assets and
liabilities Is reported as fund bc:lcmce The following are the City's major govemmentai funds:

General Fund - The generai fund is 1he general operanng fund of the City. All generat revenues

. and other receipts that are not allocated by law or conitractual agreement to anoiher fund and

genercl operating expenditures are accounted for in this fund,

Capital improvements Fund — The capital improvements fund is used to account for all financial
transactions reiated 1o the acquisition or construchon of major capital facilities, for the
govermnmental fund fype activities. '

u

PROPRIETARY FUNDS o . )
Proprietary funds focus on the defermination of changes in net assets, fincmélcl position and cash
tiows and are classified as enterprise funds,

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds may be used 1o account for any aclivity for which a fee is
charged to external users for goeds or services. The City's major enterprise funds are:

*  Water and Sewer Fund_ - The water and sewer fund is used to account for all financial
fransactions, including the acquisition or construction of major capital focilities, related to
the operations of the Cily’s water and sewer services.
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NOTE 2

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

o Mitchell Londing Fund .- The Mitchell Landing fund is used to account for all financia!
transactions related to the operations of the Mitcheli Landing Apanments, a low-income
housing project which operates under the guidelines of the Maryland Department of
Housing and Communify Development.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The City's fiduciary
funds include the volunteer firemen service award trust, health care tfrust, police-confiscated
asset and bay restoration funds. These funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee
capacity or as fiscal agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments andfor other
funds.

Medasurement Focus

‘ Entity-wide financial statemenis — The entity-wide financial statements are prepared using the

econemic resources measurement focus. All assets and liabiiities associated with the operation
ofthe City-are included on the statement of net assets,

Fund financlal statements — All governmenta! funds are accounted for using a flow of curent
flnancial rescurces measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and
current llabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The siatement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in-fund balances reports on-the sources:(i.e., revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial
resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the govermnmenial activities of the
entity-wide financial statements are prepared. Govenmental fund financial statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
entity-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the entity-wide statements, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a tlow of economic
resources.measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the siatement of net assets. The statement of changes in fund net assets
presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (l.e., expensas) in net total assets. The
statement of cash flows provides information about how the City fingnces and meets the cash
flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when fransactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Entity-wide financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Propiietary and fiduclary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Difterences in the
accrual and the modified accruai basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.
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NOTE 2

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

Revenues - Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions - Revenue rasulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentiolly equal vailue, is recorded on the
accrual basis when the exchange takes piace. On a modified accrual basls, revenue Is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Avgilable means that the rescurces will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal
vear. For the Clty, available means received within 60 days after year end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in

- return, primarily Inciude grants. Revenue from grants is recognized in the fiscal year in which afl

eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eiigibiliiy requirements include fiming requirements,
which specify the year when the resources are requlred to be used or the year when use s first
permitted; maiching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to be used for

" aspecified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the

City on a reimbursable basis., On a modifled accrual basis, revenue from nohexchange
transactions muslt also be avallable before it can be recognized,

Under the modifled accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both
measurable and ‘available at year end: charges for services, fines and forfeitures, state-levied
locally shared taxes (including gasoline tax and motor vehicle license tax), grants, inferest and
rent. :

Deferred revenue — Deferred revenue arises when assefs are recognized before tevenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that were not collected within the
available period have been repored as deferred revenue,

Expehses/Expendifures - On the accrual basits of accounting, expenses are recognized at the
time they are incurred. The fair value of donaled assels during the year is reported in the
operaling statement s an expense with q ilke amount reported as donated revenue, The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources ‘
(expenditures) rather than expenses.” Expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting
period in which the related fund liabllity is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

Budagetary Dagia

All funds, other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The
City Council adopts an annual budget as set forth in the City Charter. The budgei is prepared
on the budgetary basis of accounting consistent with GAAP, except that depreciation is not
considered. The Mayor may transfer the balance of unencumbered appropriations batween
general classifications of expenditures within an office, department or agency. Af the Mayor's
request, In the last three months of the budget year, the Council may, by resolution, transfer any
unencumbered appropriation balance from one office, department or agency fo another. Al
appropriations lapse ot year end.
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- NOTE 2

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOITES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

The following general fund functions incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the
following amount for the year ended June 30, 2010;

Public safety - fire $ 786,807

The excess of expenditures over appropriations was financed with surplus generated in the prior
year by unexpended lease proceeds.

Cash Equivatents

For putposes of the statement of cash flows, the enterprise funds consider all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be coash

equivalents.

Property Toxes -

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of July 1. Taxes are levied on July 1 and are
recognized when levied. Taxes are due and payable on or before September 30 and alt unpaid
taxes become delinquent Octaber 1, Wicomico County, Maryland bills and collects property
taxes for the City. Real property taxes uncollected as of 60 days after fiscal year end are
considered unavailable to pay liabilities that are owed at the balance sheet date and therefore
are included in deferred revenue. An allowance is established for delinquent personal property
taxes to the exient that their collectibility is improbable.

Inventories

lnvehtory is presented at the lower of cost or markef on aq first-in, first-out basis and Is expensed
when used.

Capital Assets

General capltal assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in proprietary’
funds. These asseis generally result from expenditures In the governmenial funds. These assets
are reported in the governmental activities column of the entity-wide statement of net assets but
are nof reporied in the fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds
cre reported both in the business-type activities column of the entity-wide statement of net assets
and in the respective funds.

All capital assets are capltalized of cost {or estimated historical costs) and updated for additions
and refirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date received. The City mainiains a copitalization threshold of $10,000. Improvements
are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset
or materially exlend an asset’s life are not capitalized.
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NOTE 2

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

All reported capilal assets except land and construction-in-progress are depreciated.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

. Useful Lives
Governmenial Business-type
Activities Aciivities
Lond improvements - 10 - 40years - 10 - 40 years.
Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 years 10 - 40 years
Improvements, nonbuildings 10 - 20 years 10 - 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5- 15 years 5- 15 years

Compensated Absences

The City accrues a liability for vested compensated absences including vacation, sick leave,
compensatory time and holidays worked with various limitaiions on each type of compensated

. absence. All accrued compensated absences liabilities are recorded in the entity-wide

financial statements.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the entify-wide
statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paidin
a timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the
funds. However, claims and judgments and compensated absences that will be paid from

. governmental funds are reported as a liabllity in the fund financial siatements only 1¢ the extent

that they are due for payment during the current year.
Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assels invested in capital
assels, net of related debt, consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced.
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net assels are reporied as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling iegislation adopted by the City or through
external restrictions imposed by grantors, creditors or laws or reguiations of other governments.

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purpaeses for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assels are-available,
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Fund Balance Reserves and Deficit
The City raserves those portions of governmentat fund balances that are legally segregated for
specific future use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are
not available for appropriations for expenditures. Fund balance reserves have been established
for inventory and prepaids, encumbrances and other specific fund purposes. Encumbrances
represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services, which will be
honored during the subsequent year,
The deficil in the Mitchell Landing Fund as of June 30, 2010 was $264,199. This deficit is due to
depreciation which cannot be recapiured through user charges,
The Grant Fund {nonmajor governmental fund) had a deficit fund batance of $115,661 at June
30, 2010. The deficit is due to expenditures funded by the Grant Fund that are to be funded in
the fuiure by other revenue sources.
The Septage Treatment Fund (nonmalor enterprise fund) had a deficit fund balance of $781 at
June 30, 2010. The deficit is due to expenditures funded by the Septage Treatment Fund that are
o be funded in the future by other revenue sources. :
Operating Revenues and Expenses
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary aclivity of
the proprietary funds. For fhe City, these revenues are charges for services for water, Operating
expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is the primary activity
of the fund. Revenues not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating.
Estimates |n the Preparation of Financlal Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash account and an investment pool that is available for use by all funds.
Each fund reports its portion of this account and pool. Additional cash and investment accounts
are also separately held by several of the City's funds.

The City follows the State of Maryland laws related to types of deposits and investments, selection
of depositories and collateral requirements.

Cash and deposits

At June 30, 2010, the City had deposits of §9,168,627 (carrying value $9,240,984). As of June
30, 2010, all of the City's bank balances were adequately insured and collateralized as defined
by GASB.
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NOTE 3

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

© [hvestments

The City is a 'participant of the MLGIP, which provides all local government units of the State a
safe investment vehicle for shor-term invesiment of funds. The State Legislature created MLGIP
with the passage of Afficle 95 226 of the Annotated Code of Maryland. The MLGIP, under the
administrative control of the State Treasurer, has been managed by PNC institutional investments.
A MLGIP Advisory Commiitee comprised of current participants was formed io review, on o
quarterly basis, the activities of the fund and to provide suggestions to enhance the pool.

- As of June 30, 2010, the Cily's only investments consisted of MLGIP investments which, due o

their nature, have no credit or custodial risk associated with them. The carnying value of the
investmentis at June 30, 2010 was $16,886,099.

Restricted Cash

" Restricted cash in the governmental funds represents funds held In escrow by a local financial

institution relofing to the 2009, 2008, 2007, 2004 and 2003 Public Improvement Bonds.
Additional restricted cash in the enterprise funds represents a replacement reserve fund for the
Mitchell Landing Fund and funds held in esciow for the 2009, 2008 and 2007 Public
Improvement Bonds.

Retiree Hedlth Plan Trust

The investment policy of the City of Salisbury Heaith Care Trust requires that the funds be
managed as a balonced account with approximately 60 percent equities and 40 percent
government and corporate bonds. The'investments are held at State Street Bank in the City's
name. The funds are invested as follows:

Cash and equivalents S 21,315
Government and agency bonds 210,900
Corporate bonds . 37,217
Common stock . : : » 550,321
Mutuai funds T 149,732
Total . § 069,485

Investments held at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

]

# Interest Due

Quantity Company Rate Date
30,000 Florida State Board of Education Building 3.60% 046/0115
10,000 Merrill tynch & Co. 6.15% 04/25/13
10,000 Metrill Lynch & Co. 6.88% 04/25/18
150,000 U.S. Treasury Note 2.00% 09/30/10
60,000 U.5. Treasury Note 0.09% - 02/28/11
=15,000 Wells Fargo & Co. ' 4.38% 013113
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NOTE 4

NOTE 5

CIiTY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As a result of its operations, the City effects a variety of fransactions between funds to finance
operations and service debt. Accordingly, to the extent that certain interfund transactions have
not been paid or received as of June 30, 2010, appropriate due from/to other funds have been
established,.

At June 30, 2010, the Water and Sewer Impaet Fund owes $1,108,464 to the Wafer and Sewer
Fund.
CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

July 1, 2009 Addltions Deductions Transfers June 30, 2010

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capltal assets not being depreciated:
tand and art $ 8,198,050 § -8 - § 100,000 § 8,298,050
Construction-in-progress 4,759,298 3,240,811 - (1,936,344 6,063,765
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 12,957,348 3,240,811 - (1,836,344} 14,361,815

Capital assels being depreciated:
Lond improvements 514,114 - - 310,000 824,114
Bulldings and improvements 23,292,926 198,534 - - 23,491,440
Improvements, nonbulidings 6,827,478 - - 1,493,077 8,320,555
Machinery and equlpment 16,895,025 2,139,070 (438,833) 33,267 18,628,529
Zoo animals 36,000 - - - 36,000
Total capiial assels being

depreciated : 47,565,543 2,337,604 (438,833) 1,836,344 51,300,658
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land Improvements (381,150) (102,223) - - (483,373)
Buildings and Improvements (6,425,441) {7,388) - {547,M3) {6,980,742)
improvements, nonbulldings (2,049.604) (37,577) - (246,272) (2,333,453)
Machlnery and equipment (10.853,667) (1,832,510} 154,212 794,185 (11,737,780}
Zoo animals ' _ (19.714) (950) - - (20,664)
Total accumulated depreciation (19,729,576) {1,980,648) 154,212 - [21,556,012)
Total capltal assefs being

deprecioted, net 27,835,967 356,956 {284,621) 1,836,344 29,744,646
Governmental activities capital .

assets, net $40,793,315 § 3,597,767 § (284.621) § - $44,106,461

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental funcfions as follows:

General government $ 103,196
Public safety 1,044,205
Public works 568,013
Recreation and culture 265,234
Total depreciation expense $1,980,648
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NOTE 5

CAPITAL ASSETS (cont'd)

* CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

July 1, 2009 Additlons Deduclions Transfeis June 30, 2010
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Water and Sewer Fund:
Capilal assets not being depreciated:
Land. $ 149,953 § - % - § - 8 149,953
Constructlon-in-progress 79,788,617 3,547,007 - {1,206,443) 82,129,161
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 79,938,570 3,547,007 - (1,206,463) 82,279,114
Capital assets belng depreciated:
Land improvements 535,933 : - - 535,933
Buildings and Improvements 14,687,358 56,485 - 123,122 14,866,965
Improvements, nonbuildings 25,783,798 194,353 - 1,083,341 27,081,492
Machinery and equipment 12,031,964 386,418 1561.9%0) - 12,366,392
Tolal capital assets being depreciated 53,039,053 637,256 (51,990) 1,206,463 54,830,782
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements {339.924) (21,425) - - [361,349)
Buildings and improvements (2,341,599) (452,537) - - (9,794,136)
improvements, nonbuildings (7.861,360) (862,716) 49,320 - (8,674,686}
Machinery and equipment (17,302,273) (237,816) - - {17,540,089)
Tetal accumulated depreciaiion _ [34.845,156) (1,574,494) 49,390 - (36,370,260}
Tolal capital assets being N
depreciated, net ’ 18,193,897 {937,238) {2,600} 1,206,463 18,460,522
Total Water and Sewer Capital
Assets, Net ©§ 98,132,467 $2,609,769 § (2,600) $ - $100,739.636
. Juiy 1, 2009 Addilions Deductions Transfers June 30, 2010
Septage Treatment Fund '
Capital assets being depreciated:
Machinery and equipment $ 128,292 § - 4 - § - 5 128,292
Less accumuiated depraciation:
Machinery and equipment (128,292) - - - _(128,292)
Total septage treatment capital
assets, net § - $ - - § -3 -
July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions Transfers June 30, 2000
Clty Marina Fund
Capital assels nol belng depreciated:
Land : $ 1,315000 § - 8 - 4 - $ 1,315,000
Construction-in-progress . - 101,31 - - 161,311
Tolal capltal assets not belng
depreclated 1,315,000 101,311 - - 1,416,311
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NOTE 4

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS (cont'd}

(cont'd) Juty 1, 2009  Addillons  Deductions  Transfers  June 30, 2010
Capital assets being depreciated: ’
Land improvements $1,418,255 § -8 -8 - $ 1,418,285
Buildings and improvements 209,494 - - 209,494
Machinery and equipment 37,505 ~ - - 37,505
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,665,254 - - - 1,665,254
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (1,078,767) (39,887) - - (1,118,648)
Buitdings and impsovements {169,439) (13,733) - - {183,172)
Machinery and equipment (37,505) - - (37.505)
Total accumulated depreclation [1.285,711) (93.614) - - (1,339,325
Total caplfal assets being

depreciated, net 379,543 {53,614) - - 325,929
Total City Marina Capital Assets, Net $1,694543 5§ 47,697 § -3 - § 1,742,240

July 1, 2009  Additions Deductions Transfers  June 30, 2010

Mitchell Landing Fund
Capital assets not being deprecioted:
Land $ 114010 § - $ - 8 - $§ 114010
Capital assets being depreclated:
Land improvements 7,862 - - 7.862
Buitdings and Improvements 1,350,452 6,600 - 1,357,052
Machinery and equipment 89,405 - - - 89,405
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,447,719 6,600 - - 1,454,319
Less accumulated depreciation;
Land improvements (6,313} (442) - (6.755)
Buildings and improvements {497,844) (35.577) - - (533,421)
Machlnery and equipment {89,405) - - - __[89,405)
Total accumulaied depreciation (593,562) (36,019 - - [629,581)
Tolaf capital assels being

depreciated, net 854,157 (29.419) - 824,738
Total Mitchell Landing Caplial

Assets, Net § 968,167 § (29419) $ - § - § 938,748

The majerity of the construction-in-progress relates to the improvements of Waverly Drive storm
drain for the govermmental activities and the expansion of the waste water treatment plant for

the business-type activities.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The City's charter provides that total bonded or other indebiedness of the City payable from iis
generql fax revenues shall at no time exceed the total of four percent of the assessed valuation
of all real propetty and 10 percent of the assessed valuation of all personal and corporate
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NOTE 6

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (coni'd)

property subject to taxation by the City. The legal debt limit permitted at June 30, 2010 totaled
$110,237,188. Afler considering general obligofions including mortgages and notes ouistanding
of $67,471,893 and the amount still available to draw on the 2005 Water Quality Bond (see
below for discussion), the available additionai debt margin was $42,765,295.

Lohg-term debt actlvily for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as folfows:

Juiy 1, 2009 Adidifions Retirements June 30, 2010

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Generdl obligation bonds:
$26,181,334 onginally Issued with inferest

rates ranging from 2% o 6% $ 15,322,762 5 503,400 § {1,316,124) § 14,510,038
Morgages and nofes payable:

: Stale Erosion Conirol Note - Riverwalk -

$345,280 originally Issued without interest 69,113 - (23,037) 46,0756
Siate Erosion Control Note

$83,280 onginally issued without interest 22,208 - (5,552) 14,656
Lawton Loan

.$258,740 originally Issued without interest - 258,740 - 258,740
Capital lease obligations 8,131,228 - (756,937) 7,374,291
Compeﬁsqted absences, current portion - ’

$152.270 1,293,180 229,522 - 1,622,702

Governmental Activities Long-fermn Debt $ 24,838,491 § 991,662 § (2,101,650} § 23,728,503

1

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
General obligation bonds:

$78,707,150 originally issued with

interest rates ranging from 0.4% to 6% $ 47,119,845 § 6,578,195 § (2,890,836) $ 50,807,204
Mortgages and notes payable:
Peparment of Housing and Communlty

Devetopment - Mitchell Landing Project -

No interest or principal due while project

serves as low-ncome rental housing 1,381,807 - - 1,381,807
Capital lease obligations 319,649 - (87,120) 232,529
Compensated absences, current portion

$27,330 ) 217,172 56,121 - 273,293
Business-type Activities Long-term Debt § 49,038,473 § 6634316 § (2,977,956} § 52,604,833 .

In the vear ended June 30, 1990, the City obligated itself to pay the Maryland Department of the
Environment, Maryland Water @uality Financing Administration ("MDE") $3,000,401 at an annual
interest rate of 4.894 percent for water quality upgrades and improvemenits 1o the Johnson Pond
water system. The amount of $2,848,109 of the loan was for the water quality upgrade, and
$152,292 was designated for improvements to Johnson Pond. The repayment obligation of the
proceeds of the Johnson Pond portion of the loan is shared squally with Wicomico County.
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The water quality ﬁpg rade general obligation bond is recorded in the enterprise fund. Interestis
payable semi-annually beginning August 1, 1990, and principal is payabte annually beginning
February 1, 1993,

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Totat
2011 . $ 204,545 § 30,230 $ 234,775
2012 214,555 20,220 234,775
Total $ 419,100 $§ 50,450 § 469,550

The Johnson Pond improvement debt is accounted for in the general fund. Inferest is payable
semi-annually beginning August 1, 1990, and principat is payable annually beginning February
1, 1993.

Year Ending June 30, Principal ) Interest Total
2011 $ 3,638 S 586 $ 4,224
2012 : 3,816 408 4,224
Total ‘ $ 7,454 § 994 $§ 8448

In the year ended June 30, 1997, the City obligoied itself to pay the Maryland Department of
Natural Resources {*DNR" in the amount of $345,280. The loan is repayable in 15 annual
Installments of $23,037. There is no Interest on this obligation, which is accounted for in the
generdl fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal
2011 $ 23,037
2012 23,03¢
Total § 46,076

In the year ended June 30, 1998, the City obligated itself o pay the DNR in the amount of
$83,280. The loan is repayable in 15 annual installments of $5,552. There is no interest on
this obligation, which is accounted for in the general fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal
2011 o $ 5,552
2012 5,652
2013 5,552
Total $ 16,656
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in the year ended June 30, 2001, the City issued $1,201,900 of General Obligation Bonds to
improve the municipal parking facility. The bonds bear an interest rote of 4.77 percent. interest
Is payable semi-annually beginning in May of 2001. Principal is due annually beginning in May
of 2002 and continues until May 2021. The obligation is accounted for in the nonmajor
govemnmenial fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal ' Interest ‘ Total

2011 § 55700 $ 37,905 $ 93,605
2012 58,100 35,538 93,638
2013 61,200 32,996 94,196
2014 63,500 30,242 93,742
2015 66,600 27,384 93,984
2016-2020 389,300 85,491 474,79
2021 90,600 5114 95,714
Total $ 785,000 $ 254,670 $ 1,039,670

In the year ended June 30, 1994, the City issued $6,975,000 of General Obligation Bends at
inferest rates from 4.0 percent to 6.0 percent. interest is payable semi-annually beginning
August 1, 1994. The bonds mature in varying amounts beginning February 1, 1995 and
continuing through February 1, 2014, $194,000 of the batance of the obligation is caried in the
enterprise fund and the balance, $1,804,000, is accounted for in the general fund,

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 525,000 § 101,156 -8 626,156
2012 550,000 74,206 624,906
2013 - 575,000 47,406 622,406
2014 350,000 17,938 367,938
Totd! § 2,000,000 $ 241,406 § 2,241,406

In the year ended June 30, 1999, the City issued 54,860,000 of Public Improvement Bonds at an
interest rate of 4.39 percent. Principal and interest are payable semi-annually beginning
becember 1, 1999. The bonds mature in varying amounts through June 1, 2014, The amount of
$817,188 of the balance of the obligation is carried in the enterprise fund and the baionce of
$804,220 is accounted for in the general fund.
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Yeor Ending June 30, Principal interest ’ Total
2011 § 379,343 $ 67062 $ 446,405
2012 396,179 50,226 446,405
2013 413,762 32,643 446,405
2014 432124 14,279 446,403
" Total $ 1,621,408 § 164210 $ 1.785,618

In the year ended June 30, 2003, the City obligated itself to pay MDE $3,163,341 at an annual
interest rate of 0.4 percent for wastewater tfreatment plant upgrades and expansion. Interest is
payable seml-annually beginning August T, 2003, and principal is payable annually beginning
February 1, 2005 until the principal amount of the bond has been paid. The general obligation
bond is accounted for in the enterprise fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2011 § 155932 5 16,798 § 172,730
2012 156,556 16,174 172,730
2013 157,182 15,548 172,730
2014 157,811 14,919 172,730
2015 158,442 14,288 172,730
2016-2020 801,767 61,883 ' 863,650
2021-2024 653,037 37,883 690,920
Total § 2,240,727 § 177,493 $ 2,418,220

In the year ended June 30, 2003, the City issued $5,614,000 of Public Improvement Bonds at
interest rates from 2.0 percent to 4.5 percent. Interest is payable semi-annually beglinning May
1, 2003. The bonds mature in varying amounfs beginning May 1, 2004 and continuing through
May 1, 2023. The amount of $1,318,14% of the balance of the obligation is carried in the
enterprise fund and the balance of $2,727,851 is accounted for in the general fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 248,300 § 161,884 $ 410,184
2012 257,100 153,939 411,039
2013 266,100 ‘ 145,262 411,362
2014 275,300 134,948 410,248
2015 283,800 125,948 409,748
2016-2020 1,595,200 455,688 2,050,888
2021-2023 1,120,200 - 106,117 1,226,317
Total § 4,046,000 § 1,283,806 § 5,329,806
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In the year ended June 30, 2004, the Cify issued $5,318,000 of Public Improvement Bonds at
interest rates from 2.0 percent to 4.625 percent, Interast is payable semi-annuglly beginning
November 1, 2004. The bonds mature in varying amounts beginning May 1, 2005 and
continuing through May 1, 2024, This obligation is accounted for In the general fund.

Year EnchiQ June 30, Principal Interest Total

2011 ‘ § . 269,600 $ 161,948 § 431,548

2012 - 279,500 153,193 432,693

2013 287,000 143,460 o - 430,460

2014 301,200 132,696 433,896
2015 223,000 120,614 343,614
.2016-2020 © . 1,252,900 456,222 1,709,122

. 2021-2024 ' . 1,214,100 - 149,165 1,363,265
Total $ 3,827,300 § 1,317,298 $ 5,144,598

In the year ended June 30, 2006, the City obligated itself to pay MDE $42,009,341 at an annual
interest rate of 0.4 percent for wastewater freatment plant upgrades and expansion. Interest is
payable semi-annually beginning February 1, 2006, and principal Is payable annuaily
beginning February 1, 2009 until the principal amount of the beond has been pald. The general
obligation bond is accounted for in the enterprise fund. As of June 30, 2010, total principal of
541,557,937 has been drawn on this facility, and the principal amount outstanding totaled
$37,506,353. Future maturity requirements below are based on the full obligation.

'Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2011 - ‘ $ 2,037,971 $ 251,654 § 2,289,625
2012 2,046,123 243,502 2,289,625
2013 2,054,307 235,318 © 2,289,625
2014 .- 2,062,524 227,101 - 2,289,625
. 2015 . Co 2,070,775 218,851 | 2,289,626
2016-2020 10,478,784 969,343 11,448,127
2021-2025 10,690,043 758,084 11,448,127
2026-2028 6,517,199 ' 351,677 6,868,876
Total $ 37,957,726 $ 3,255,530 $ 41,213,256

in the year ended June 30, 2007, the City Issued $4,950,000 of Public Improvement Bonds at an
interest rate of 4.03 percent. Interest Is payable semi-annually beginning October 1, 2007. The

‘bonds mature beginning April 1, 2008 and continuing through April 1, 2027, $1,210,600 of the

balance of the obligation is accounted for In the general fund and the balance of $2,996,900is
reflected in the enterprise fund,
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Year Ending June 38, Principal interest " Total

2011 § 247,500 $ 169,632 $§ 417,032

2012 247,500 159,588 407,088

2013 247,500 149,614 397,114

2014 247,500 139,640 387,140

2015 247,500 129,665 377,165

2016-2020. 1,237,500 498,713 1,736,213

2021-2025 1,237,500 249,357 1,486,857

. 2026-2027 495,000 29,923 524,923
Tota! § 4,207,500 § 1,526,032 $ 5,733,532

In the year ended June 30, 2008, the City issued $3,605,000 of Public Improvement Bonds af an
interest rate of 4.09 percent. interest is payable semi-annually beginning August 1, 2008, The
bonds mature beginning February 1, 2009 and continuing through February 1, 2028. 5459,787
of the balance of obligation is carried in the enterprise fund and the balance of $2,840,213 Is
accounted for in the general fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2011 § 160,000 § 134,970 § 294970
2012 165,000 128,426 293,426
2013 170,000 ) 121,678 291,678
2014 175,000 114,725 289,725 .
2015 180,000 107,567 287,667

2016-2020 1,000,000 423,316 1,423,316

2021-2025 1,030,000 197,752 1,227,752

2026-2028 420,000 34,766 454,766
Total $ 3,300,000 $ 1,263,200 $ 4,563,200

In the year ended June 30, 2010, the City Issued $2,600,000 of Public Improvement Bonds at an
interest rate of 3.78 percent. Interest is payable semi-annually beginning May 1, 2010. The

- bonds mature beginning November 1, 2010 and continuing through November 1, 2024,
$2,096,600 of the balance of obligation is carried in the enferprise fund and the balance of
$503,400 is accounted for in the general fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2011 $§ 173,333 $ 96,351 § 269,684
2012 173,333 89,944 263,277
2013 173,333 83,065 256,398
2014 173,333 76,422 249,755
2015 : 173,333 69,779 243,112
2016-2020 866,667 248,504 1,115171
2021-2025 866,668 83,192 949,860
Total $ 2,600,000 S 747,257 $ 3,347,257
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in the year ended June 30, 2010, the City obligated itself to pay MDE $2,756,400. The loan is
repayable in annuai installments of $145,021. There is an initial payment of $1,000 due on
August 1, 2011. The bonds mature through Febtuary 1, 2030. There is no interest on this
obligation, which is accounted for in the enterprise fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Tolal
2011 $ - $ - $ -
2012 - 146,021 - 146,021
2013 145,021 - 145,021
2014 145,021 ' - 145,021
2015 ‘ 145,021 ‘ - 145,021
2016-2020 725,105 - 725,105
2021-2025 725,105 - 725,105
2026-2030 725,106 - 725,106
Totol $ 2,756,400 $ - $ 2,756,400

In the year ended June 30, 2010, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Maryland
Energy Administration (“MEA™) for their Jane E. Lawton Conservation Loan Program (JELLP) for the
amount of $258,740. There Is no interest on this loan. The first principal payment is due 13
months after the first draw on the loan, and the ioan matures September 2019. The loan is
accounted for in the general fund.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Toici
2011 $ - $ . $ -
2012 28,749 - 28,749
2013 - 28,749 - 28,749
2014 28,749 - 28,749
2015 ' 28,749 : - : 28,749
2016-2020 ’ 143,744 - 143,744
Total $ 258,740 $ - § 258,740

In the year ended June 30, 2007, the City issued its $9,775,000 of Special Obligation Bonds
(Villages at Aydelotte Farm Project), Serles 2007, payabie solely from and secured by a pledge
of cerlain tax increment revenues and special iax revenues, These bonds are secured In the {irst
instance by the proceeds of tax collections attributable to the increase in the assessed value of
real propetrfy located in a prescribed development district over the original taxable vaiue of such
real property, as determined in accordance with the Maryland Tax Increment Financing Act. To
the extent such tax increment revenues are insufficient, proceeds of special taxes levied on and
collected from the taxable parcels within o prescribed special taxing district will be used to pay
debt service. The full faith and credit and unlimited taxing power of the Cify have not been
pledged to pay these bonds. These bonds are payable over 30 years, with semi-annual interest
payments on each July 1 and January 1, starting July 1, 2007, and principal payments on July 1
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in the years 2012 fo 2036, inclusive, with a final principal and interest payment on January 1,
2037. These bonds bear interest af the rate of 5.25 percent per annum. These bonds are not
subject 1o the debt limit set forth in the City’s Charer. These bonds were issued with the
expectation that interest thereon shall be excludable from gross income of the holders thereof for
federal income tax purposes.

In the year ended June 30, 2007, the City issued its $15,000,000 Special Obligation Bonds
(village at Salisbury Lake Project), Series 2007, payable solely from and secured by a pledge of
certain tax increment revenues and special fax revenues. These bonds are secured in the first
instance by the proceeds of tax collections attributable 1o the increase in the assessed value of
reqal property located in a prescribed development district over the original taxable value of such
property, as determined in accordance with the Maryland Tax Increment Financing Act. To the
extent such tax increment revenues are insufficient, proceeds of special faxes levied on and
collected from the taxable parcels within a prescribed special taxing district will be used to pay
debt service. The full faith and credit and unlimited taxing power of the City have not been
pledged o pay these bonds. These bonds are payable over 30 years, with semi-annual interest
payments on July 1 and January 1, starting July 1, 2012 (or such earlier date as the bonds are
converted and re-marketed), and principal payments on July 1 in the years 2013 to 2036,
Inclusive, with o final principal and Interest payment on January 1, 2037. These bonds initialiy
bear interest at the rate of 7.9 percent per annum, These bonds are not subject to the debt limii
set forth in the City's Charer. These bonds were issued as draw-down bonds and sold to the
then-current owner of the property located in the prescribed developmenifspecial taxing district.
These bonds are subject to conversion and re-offering if cettain conditions set forth in the
Indenture of Trust relating to such bonds are met. Uniil any such conversion and re-offering, the
bond holder will advance proceeds of the bonds to pay project costs. Untit any such conversion
and re-offering (and, potentially, even thereafter), interest on such bonds will be includable In
gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax purposes.

The City has entered into leases for the acquisition of various machinery and equipment, which
are ciassified as capital leases. Additienally, in the year ended June 30, 2007, the Cily entered
into a lease-purchase agreement in the amount of $5,320,000 for the construction of a new fire
station headaquarters. This is classified as a capital lease.  Accordingly, the present value of
future minimum lease payments and the related assets have been recorded in the appropriate
fund.

Criginal cost of assets acquired under these capital leases for the general fund is $6,098,133 with
accumulafed depreciation of $751,214; and for the water and sewer fund is $196,987 with
accumulated depreciation of $90,490 at June 30, 2010.

Folfowing is a summary of total fulure minimum lease payments for all capital leases:

Year Ending June 30,

2011 : $ 1,007.842

20012 ' ' 975,156

2013 971,922

2014 926,642

2015 898,946
2016-2020 2,655,947
2021-2025 2,085,875
2026-2027 834,350
Amount representing interest (2,749,860]
Present value of future minimum lease payments M:
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PENSION PLANS
Plan Description

Generaily, all regular empioyees of the City participate in the State of Maryland Empioyees
Retirement and Pension Systems ("Employees’ Systems®). Law enforcement officers employed by
the Clty generally participate in the State of Maryiand Law Enforcement Officers Pension Systems
("LEOPS"). Starting In fiscal year 2005, the City's fire department was enagbled to paricipate in the
LEOPS. Both the Employees' Systems and the LECPS (collectively, the "Systems") are cost-sharing

+ multiple-empioyer public retirement systems sponscred by the Maryland State Retirement and

Pensions Systems and crealed by the Maryland General Assembly. The Maryland State
Retirernent Agency Issues a publicly available financial repoit that includes financicl stalements
and required supplementary information for the systems. That report may be obtdined by writing
to the Office of Legislative Aldits, Siate Office Building, 301 West Preston Street, Balfimore,
Maryland, 21201,

Participants in the Systems may refire with full benefits after 30 years of service regardiess of age
or at varlous ages with specified years of eligibliity service for reduced benefits. Annual service
refirement allowances are paid moénthly to rethed members in accordance with allowance
cplions selected based on average final compensation.  Paricipants terminating in the
retirement system prior to specified retirement age are refunded their accumulated contributions
plus earned interest or may defer receipt of accumulated confributions until age 60. Parlicipants
and their beneficiares may aiso be eligible for disability and death beneflts based on years of
creditable service and average tinat compensation.

Funding Policy

During fiscai year 2010, the State Personnel and Pensions Aricle required acfive members to
contribute to the System at the rate of five percent of their covered salaty.

Empioyer's Payroll and Contributions Under the Plan .

.The employer's current year payroll for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, payroll

covered under the various stale plans and contribulions paid are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Total payrol! ) $ 15,562,921 $15,213,210 $14,707,304
Payroll covered under the plons 15,740,191 15,619,904. 14,171,002
Contributions paid: -
City pqymen?s 2,551,348 . 2,551,700 2,788,371

POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

In addifion to the pension benefits described above, the City provides limited post-retirement
health care benefits as approved by the City Council to all retirees (and their dependentis) who
are eligible to retire under the State Retirement System and, as of July 1, 2007, those who have
worked for the City for a-minimum of 10 years.
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (cont'd)

Subject 1o the above, the employee may refire and retain health insurance coverage uniil the

ietiree reaches the age of 65. During this period the City will pay 30 percent and 50 percent,
respectively, of the refiree's health insurance premium for employees who retired prlor to and

‘ after July 1, 2002.

For the year ended‘ June 30, 2010, there were 44 participants eligible and recelving post-
retirement health care benefifs ai a pay-as-you-go cost fo the City of 51 37,637. =

Plan Description

During the year ended June 30, 2007, Wicomico County and the Board of Educdation jointly set
up the “Retiree Health Insurance Plan Trust of the Board of Education of Wicomico County and
Wicomico County.” A Board of Trustees {the "Board") oversees the trust. In June 2009, the City of
Salisbury joined the frust and the trust was renamed “Amended Retiree Health Pian Trust for the
Wicomico County Board of Education and Wicomico County and City of Salisbury” {the "Trust").

The plan is an agent multiple-emplover plan with combined adminisirative functions for
efficiency, and each agent employer remains responsibie for financing benefiis of its own
individual plan. Each agent employer also remains individuaily responsible for its own separate
actuarial valuations, and expenses and obligations are measured like those of sole emp!oyers

The assets of The three entities are segregated within the Trust. ’

The assets of the trust are managed by an invesimeni manager, Croft-Leominster, inc., undera
formal investment policy. The Board meets quarterly to review investment performance. the

" invesiment manager provides a fiscal year petformance repon to the Board. Questions

regarding performance should be directed fo the Plan Adminisirator. The plan does not issue a
stand-alone financial report.

Funding Policy

The City has choseri .’ro continue to pay current retiree medical payrments from the General Fund.,
Therefore, the trust will fund ecch year, io the exient appropriate, the Annual Required
Conitribution ("ARC").

The City contracted for an actuarial study which determined that the ARC for fiscal year'2010
was $3,111,000. The City funded the trust with ¢ health care rebate of $900,000 in fiscal 2069,
In fiscal year 2010, the City did not fund the trust, but recorded the associated liability.

Annuagl OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s OPEB cost (expensej is the ARC, which represents a leve! of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded .
actuariat liabilitles {or funding excess) over a period not fo exceed 30 years. The following table
shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actuolly
coninbuted 10 the plan and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation.
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Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year - §. 976,363

Annual Required Confribution . .- - 3,111,000
Contributions. o - S -
Total Net OPEB Obligation at End of Year $ 4,087,363

- The annual OPEB cos! and the net 'OPEB obligation are determlned on 1he basis of annual
contributions. . - . :
_sChedule of Funding

Based on an actuarial study performed in fiscal 2010, as of July 1, 2009, the most recent
actuarial date, the pian was 3.49 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability ("AAL") for
benefits was $25,765,000 and the actuarial value of assets was $900,000, resulting in an
unfunded actuarlal accrued [fability ("UAAL") of $24,865,000. As of June 30, 2010, the AAL was
524,865,000,

' Actuarial Acerued Liabilities ’ . $ 25,765,000

Actuarial Value of plan assets - L (?IOO,ODD

Unfunded AAL . » | A | . 24,865,000
Funded ratio as of actuarial value dates ' b . 3.49%
Covered Payroll _ . § 15562921
UAA-L as o perceniage of covered payrol - 159.77%

Actuarial assumptions of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occcurrence of events far info the fufure. Exampies
include assumptions about future employment, morality and the healthcare cost frend. Amounts
determined regarding the funding status of the pian and the annual requlred contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revisicn as actual results are compared with past
expectaiions and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress,
presented as required supplementary informaticn but included in the notes to financial
statements, presents trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial -teporiing purposes are based on q substantive plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members; and include the type of benefits provided
at the fime of each valuation and the historical paftern of sharing the benefit cosis between the
empioyer and plan members to that point, and any known changes in the pian going forward.,
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS {cont'd)
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of shorf-term volafility in the actuarial accrued liabilities and. the actuonal value of
cssets consistent with the iong-term perspective of the caiculations.

In the actuarial valuation, the pr0|ecfed unit credit method, with linear pro-ration to assumed
benefit commencement, was used. The actuarial assumptions included an invesiment return for

‘discounted liabilities of 6.0 percent. Mortalily calculations were done using the RP 2000
Combined Healthy Table and the RP 2000 Combined Disabled Table.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Intemal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all eligible City employees, permits them o
defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available fo
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The defered
amounts are invesied in various annuity contracts. ‘

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plcm dll property and rights purchased with
those amounts and all income athiibutable to those amounts, property or rights are held in frust
for the exclusive benefit of plan participants.and their beneficiaries and are not subject to the
clqims of the City’s general creditors.

The City has no liability for losses under the plan, but does hove the duty of due core that would

SERVICE AWARD TRUST

‘The City has a'Volunteer Flremen Servuce Award Trust, which was established to accumulate funds

for the City Volunteer Firemen's Retirement. The maximum monthly benefit per individual is $500
upon retirement, and the refirement age s 60. The fransactions of the Setvice Award Trust have

- been reported as an expendable frust fund In the fiduciary fund fypes The trust has assets of

$102,708 as of June 30, 2010

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City is the recipient of various federal and state grants. The City may be under obligation to
repay these grant funds if, upon final review by the respecfive granting agencies, the funds
expended did not meet the established program objectives. As of June 30, 2010, the City is not

~ aware of any repayment requess.

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits, After considering all relevant facts and the opinion of
legal counsel, it is management's opinion that such litigafion will not, in aggregate, have a
material adverse effect on the financial position of the City.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT HIABILITIES (cont'd)

The City has enféréd into contracts to'ubgrdde and expand its waste water reatment plant, The

totat value of the confracts, Including change orders, is approximately. $80,152;519. The

completed pomon ($74,569,005) of these contracts is reflected in the water and sewer fund
construction-in-progress.

"~ The City has entered into contracts for the Beaver Dam Créek Stdblllzahén The tc;to! vaILle ofthe

contracts is $950, 000, The completed portion ($8H 988] of the contracts is reflected in the
govemmental activities construction-in- -progress,

The City has entered into contracts for the Waverly Drive Storm Draln Upgrade. This contract Is

Jointly funded by the City and the State of Maryland. The tofal value of the contracts is

»

the governmental activities construction-in-progress.

approximately $4,317,000.. The completed portion ($3,889,477) of the contracts is reﬂecied in

i '

“The City has entered info con_trac’rs for the Salisbury Portable Water. Storage-Projects.. The tofal

value of the contracts is approximately $2,472,116. The completed portion (51,488,108) of the
contract is reflected in the water and sewer fund construction-in-progress.

" Goveinmental activities construction-in-progress reflects additional smaller contracts for various

projects not completed at year end totaling $1,362,300. In addition, business-type activities
have incurred costs totaling $6,173,35¢9 for projects not under contract.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to varlous risks of [oss related to torts; theft of, damage fo and desirﬁction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries fo employees;’ and natural disasters. The City has joined

"together with other municipalities in the State to form the Local Government insurance Trust

('LGIT"), a public entity risk pool curtently operafing ds a common risk management and
insurance program for member municipalities. The City pays an annuat premium fo LGIT for its
bullding and contents, commercial general liability, environmental liability, business automobile
and excéss liability coverage. The agreement for formation of the LGIT provides that it will be
sélf-sustaining through member premiums and wifl reinsure through commercial compomes for
claims in excess of $500, 000 for liability claims. The City continues to carry separate commercial
insurcnce for its workers' compensation and heaith insuronce coverage. Setiled claims resulting
from the above risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Under the terms of the agreement, LGIT. deficits may- be funded by cddmoncxl ossessments
against pc:rhmpchng munlmpalmes Iewed at the trustees' discretion. . g

RESERVED ANQ DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES‘

Reservations of fund balances show amounts that are not available for current appropriations or
are legally restricted for specific uses. - Designations of fund bclances are used to show the
amounts within unreserved fund balances, which are infended 1o be used for specific purposes
but are not legally restiicted. The purpose for each reservation or designation is indicated by the
account fille on the face of the balance sheet.
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NOTE 14

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSEQIUENT EVENTS

On August 23, 2010, fhe Cily entered into a loan agreement with the Maryland Energy
Administration in the amount of $142,800 for the Parking Garage LED lighting project.
Repayment is to begin on the thiteenth month following the initial disbursement, The principal
and interest are paid semi-annually with an interest rate of 2.5 percent over a six-year period.

On October 4, 2010, the City issued §5,050,000 of Public Facilities Refunding Bonds of 2010 with
an inferest rate of 3.35 percent. Payment of annual setial instaliments of principal and interest
begin on October 1, 2011 and continue through October 1, 20246, The amount will be camled in
the general fund, The bonds were issued to refinance the current ouistanding lease obligation

relafed io the new fire headguarters building.

The Cily has evaluated all subsequent events through December 6, 2010, ihe date the f:noncml
statements were available to be issued.
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

RESQURCES ({INFLOWS):

Tax revenue

Other revenue

Charges for setvices

Other sources ,

Intergovernmental revenues

AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

. CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (QUTFLOWS):

General government
City council
City clerk
Mayor's office
Elections
Finance
Purchasing
_City attorney
Information services
Human resources
Planning and zoning
“Municipal buildings
Poptar Hill
Public safely
. Police and traffic control
Fire
Buildings, permits and inspections
Néighborhood services and code compliance
Public works .
Supervision and engineering
Roadways
Highway lighting
Street cleaning
Waste-collection and disposal .
Recycling
Fleet maintenance
Carpenter shop
Recreation and culture
Municipal zoo
_ Park maintenance
‘Nondepartmental
* TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATION

EXCESS OF REVENUES.OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LISES)
Operating transfers out
Debt payments
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES

-NET CHANGE N FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

. Budgeted Amounts

Criginat

$ 23,736,800
2,014,181
2,159,900
4,782,939
2,593,949 .

_ 32,287,769

89,835 ~
147,245
606,280

1,400
477 430
213,071
201,300

92,000
137,501
203,500
351,190

54,195

10,513,244
6,423,894
420,866
523,342

1,717,854
842,127
838,500
383,135

1,444,580
181,260
537,545
157,296

1,394,964
423,683
533,940

20,011,177

3,278,592

(181,188)
3,095,404

(3,276,592)

11,340,615

$ 11,340,615
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Variance with

Finat Budget
Positive
Finat Actual {Negative)
$ 23,736,800 $ 23,239,095 $ (497.705).°
2,254,852 2,961,262 706,410
2,159,900 2,402,768 242,868
1,858,036 - (1,858,036)
2,593,949 1,491,278 _ {1,102,671)
. 32,603,537 30,094,403 (2,509,134
88,335 84,260 4,075
149,086 137,391 11,685
623,792 605,212 18,580
1,430 - 1,430
503,516 435,761 67,755
214,626 203,223 11,403
231,300 212,375 18,825
99,617 67.890 31,727
139,079 + 129,031 10,048 -
240,452 227,623 12,829
352,551 131,465 221,086
59,794 20,716 39,078
10,638,456 . 9,814,119 - 824,337
6,577,225 7,364,032 {786,807)
421,362 354,702 86,660
633,209 584,963 48,246
2,808,115 1,375,518 1,432,697
927,093 722,111 204,982
898,739 874,187 24 558
408,449 179,046 229,403
1,369,035 1,088,661 280,374
188,917 153,544 35,373
547,856 526,912 20,944
156,091 - 151,396 4,695
1,438,956 1,348,530 90,426
461,371 442 282 10,089
524,936 477,413 - . 47,523
30,703,368 27,712,357 2,991,031
1,800,149 2,382 046 481,897
(416,872} (382,251) 34,621
{3,145,952) {3,047,956) 97,996 -
__ (3.562,824) —_{3,430,207} 132,617
(1,662,875) (1.048,167) 614,514
11,340,615 " 11,340,815 -
$ 9,677,940 $ 614.514

$ 10,292,454

¢
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE - ESTIMATED AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Taxes
Real property
Personal property
Crdinary business corporations and utilities
Payments in lieu of tax
Admissions and amusement
State shared income tax
Total taxes

interest and penalties on delinquent taxes
Total taxes, interest and penalties

Other revenue
Amusement licenses
Bilthoard licenses
Building and inspection permits
Business licenses
Franchise fees
lLandlord licenses
Parking fines and meter coliections
Plumbing licenses and permits
Street-breaking permits
Towing companies
Other miscellanecus permits
Municipal infraction viclations
Interest on investment of idie funds
Insurance proceeds
Donations
Damages to city property
Zoo commission
Zoo reimbursements
Sale of maps, codes and documents
Sale of fixed assets
Bad debt collections
Gther miscellaneous receipts
Total other revenue

Continued on next page.

Final

Budget

$15,823,889
65,593
5,507,824
246,494
328,000
1,570,000

23,631,800

105,000

23,736,800

4,500
8,611
200,000
124,950
348,000
219,850
75,100
27,000
2,500
1,500
15,100
25,000
192,000
156,000
205,500
100
306,260
195,380
3,500
240,671
18,000
26,320

2,254,852
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Actual

$15,771,214
60,436
5,316,605
246,494
155,738
1,537,197

23,087,684

151,411

23,239,095

4,730
8,693
186,017
150,196
344,496
262,040
69,753
24,822
875
2,225
23,987
39,514
37,697
318,139
211,515

332,032
172,866
12,412
339,400
27,159
382,594

2,961,262

Variance
Positive

{Negative)

(52,675)
(5,157)
(281,219)

(172,262)
32,803
(544,116)

46,411

(497,705)

230
(18)
(13,983)
25,246
(3,504)
42,190
(5,347)
(2,178)
(1,525)
725
8,887
14,514
(154,303}
303,139
6,015
(100)
25,772
(22,424)
8,912
98,729
9,159
366,274

706,410




CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE - ESTIMATED AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

- 49-

Variance
- Finat Positive
. Budget Actual (Negative)
Charges for services
. Administrative fees $ 16,100 $ 52,752 3 36,652
. Ambutance call fees 1,215,000 1,467,688 252,688
Advertising 100 ‘ 35 (65)
Filing fees 200 - {200)
Garbage disposal fees 683,000 688,168 5,168 -
Plan review fees 36,000 . 23,216 {12,784)
Police atarm systems 95,000 60,141 (34,859)
Weed removal 112,000 106,268 (5,732)
Zomng appeal and housing board appeal fees 2,500 4,500 2,000
Total charges for services : 2,159,900 2,402,768 242,868
Other.sources _ '
Current surplus available 1,858,036 - (1,858,036)
Intergovernmental
State of Maryland ' o
Police protection 505,723 317,385 {188,338)
Enterprise zone 35,000 74,159 39,158
Highway user 1,249,924 281,717 {968,207)
Wicomico County .
Financial corporations 18,302 18,302 -
Fire department 572,000 572,000 -
Room tax 213,000 227,715 14,715
Total intergovernmental 2,533,949 1,491,278 (1,102,671)
Total Revenues $ 32,603,537 $ 30,094,403 $ (2,509,1 342



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS -
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Paositive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
General Government :
City council
Salaries $ 52,000 $ 52,000 % 52,000 $ -
Personnel benefits 29,685 28,185 25,451 2,734
Other operating expenses 8,150 7,985 6,809 1,176
Budget adjustment - 165 - 165
89,835 88,335 84,260 4,075
City clerk
Salaries 96,073 96,337 96,337 -
Persannel benefils 29,342 30,578 28,862 1,716
Other operating expenses 21,830 21,581 12,192 . 9,389
Budget adjustment - 590 - 530
L 147,245 . .- 149,086 137,391 11,695
Mayor's office . o . . LT :
_ Salaries R 243,456 243,456 ) 240,621 - 2,835
-‘Personnel benefits 69,045 69,045 ~ 65,709 3,336
" Other operating expenses 73,579 85,898 78,682 7.216
"' Budget adjustment - 1,900 - 1,800
Community promotion 220,200 223,493 220,200 . 3,293
606,280 623,792 . 605,212 18,580
Elections . : _
Other operating expenses 1,400 1,400 . - 1,400
Budget adjustment - 30 - 30
‘ 1,400 1,430 - 1,430
City aftorney ) . .
Professional services 201,300 . 227,274 212,375 14,899
Budget adjustment - 4,026 - 4,026
. ) ) 201,300 231,300 212,375 18,925
internal services - finance - ) : .
Salaries- 236,534 : 236,193 231,682° 4,611
Personnel benefits . 93,058 93,059 : » 88,624 4,435
- Other operating expenses 117,598 - 136,606 . .83110 53,496
Independent audit 30,240 . 32,445 . 32,445 -
Budget adjustment - 3,097 - 3,007
Capital outlays - 2,118 - 2,116
477,430 o 503,516 435,761 67,755

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
. SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS -
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Internal services - purchasing
Salaries $ 126,240 $ 126,587 $ 126,587 & -
Personnel benefits 45,634 45,287 44 137 1,150
- Other operating expenses 41,197 41,927 32,499 9,428
Budget adjustment - - 825 - 825
: 213,071 214,626 203,223 T . 11,403
Infernal services - human resources N '

' Salaries : 56,983 57,169 57,168 -1
Personnel benefits 69,198 65,240 61,203 4,037
Other operating expenses 11,320 12,945 10,660 2,285
Budget adjustment - 3,725 - 3.725

- 137,501 139,079 129,031 10,048

. City and-county - joint activities :

" Information services ' 92,000 99,617 67,890 31,727
Planning and zoning 203,500 240,452 227623 12,829
295,500 340,069 295,513 44,556

Municipal buildings
Other operating expenses 182,180 136,908 111,373 25,5635
Budget adjustment - 195,551 - 195,551

169,000 20,092 20,092

_Capital outlays -

- 351,120 352,551 131,465 221,086

Poplar Hill Mansion 54,195 59,794 20,7186 39,078

Total General Government ' 2,574,947 2,703,578 2,254,947 448,631

Public Safety ,

Police services _ g ’ ’ :

Salaries . 5,406,378 5,446,381 5,348,774 97,607

Personnel benafits 7 2,908,399 2,847,947 2,484,225 363,722

Other operating expenses 998,875 1,042,309 837,889 204,420

Budget adjustment ‘ ' - 52,011 - 52,011

Capital outlays 67,860 - 43,993 43,992 1

- 9,381,512 9,432,641 - 8,714,880 717,761

- Confinued on next page.

-
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS -
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Police communications :
Salaries $ 317,486 $ 317481 $ 300,445 $ 17,036
Personnel benefits 107,368 107,373 95,145 12,228
Other operating expenses 79,461 84,604 65,152 19,452
Budget adjustment - 2373 - 2,373
Capital outlays ~ 604 - 604
504,315 512,435 460,742 51,693
Animal control o . ..
Salaries 71,448 .. .T10.887 .. *'$9,892 795
Personnel benefits 35,211 35,029 32,969 2,080
Other operating expenses 93,099 95,204 90,456 - 4,748
Budget-adjustment - 1,944 S - T 1,944
‘ 199,758 202,364 193,317 - 9,547
Total police department 10,085,585 10,147,940 9,368,939 779,001
Traffic control
Salaries, - .- ‘ 217,225 ) 221,925 . 220,441 71,484
Personnel benefits 86,784 87,098 83,661 3,437
Other operating expenses 123,650 168,693 141,078 27,615
Budget adjustment - o © 12,800 - 12,800
N : 427,659 490,516 445 180 | 45,336
Fire department
Firefighting e ) : C
+  Salaries 3,221,996 3,221,986 3,167,896 54,100
Personnel benefits 1,874,352 T 1,895,568 1,614,008 281,562
Other operating expenses 979,683 962,479 " 766,056 T 196,423
.. Budget adjustment Co- 72,513 .- 72,513
‘ Capital outlays . - - 179,260 256,066 1,668,908 {1,412,842)
i 6,255,291 6,408,622 7,216,866 {808,244)
Volunteer firemen ) '
Personnel benefits 108,000 108,000 107,820 110
Other operating expenses 60,603 43,700 39,276 4,424
. Budget adjustment .- 16,903 - 16,903
. L 168,603 168,603 147,166 21,437
. Jotal fire department - 6,423,894 6,577,225 - - 7,364,032 © {786,807)

.-

Continued on next page.
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WiTH APPROPRIATIONS -

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Buildings, permits and inspections
Salaries
Personnel benefits
Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment

Neighborhood services and code compliance
Salaries
Personnel benefits
Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment

Total Public Safety

Department of Public Works
Supervision and.engineering
Salaries
Personnel benefits
Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment

Roadways
Salaries
Personnel benefits
Cther operating expenses
Budget adjustment
Capifal outlays

Highway lighting

Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment

Continued on next page.

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 300,612 $ 299,472 $ 251,902 $ 47,570
93,609 93,609 82,211 11,398
26,645 27,081 20,589 6,492
- 1,200 - 1,200
420,566 421,362 354,702 66,660
360,690 359,190 332,417 26,773
120,726 120,726 110,018 10,708
141,926 149,893 142,528 7,365
- 3,400 - 3,400
623,342 633,209 584,963 48,246
17,981,346 18,270,252 18,117,816 152,436
699,500 696,978 684,107 12,871
244,505 247,650 234,566 13,084
773,750 1,381,987 456,845 925,142
- 481,500 - 481,500
1,717,854 2,808,115 1,375,518 1,432,597
313,589 314,582 310,635 3,947
134,394 130,619 125,685 4,934
256,144 354,569 76,033 278,536
- 3,255 - 3,255
138,000 124,068 209,758 ~ (85,690)
842,127 927,093 722,111 204,982
838,500 875,614 874,181 1,433
- 23,125 - 23,125
838,500 © 898,739 874,181 24,558

-53 -



Continued on next page.

Sanitation

Street cleaning
Salaries
Personnel benefits
Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment
Capital outlays

Waste collection and disposal
Salaries
Personnel benefits
OCther operating expenses
Budget adjustment
Capital outiays

Recycling

Salaries

Personnel benefits

‘Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment
Capital outlays

Total sanitation

Flee‘i maintenance

Saiaries

Personnel benefits
Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment

Carpenter shop

Salaries

Personnel benefits
Other operating expenses

Total Department of Public Works

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS -
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance with

7,304,295

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 109,644 % 83,249 $ 82,705 $ 544
57,991 43,489 42,099 1,390
30,500 54,981 54,242 739

- 226,730 - 226,730

185,000 - - -
383,135 408,449 179,046 229,403
318,713 318,933 317,217 1,716
134,569 134,773 129,308 5,465
746,298 659,729 642,136 17,593

. - 10,600 .- 10,600
245,000 245,000 - 245,000
1,444,580 1,369,035 1,088,661 280,374
87,363 90,755 90,277 478
38,197 43,462 41,615 1,847
27,700 26,700 21,652 5,048

' - 28,000 S 28,000
28,000 ‘ - - -
181,260 188,917 153,544 35,373
2,008,975 1,966,401 1,421,251 545,150
251,837 257,514 256,123 1,391
97,048 100,103 895,074 5,029
188,660 186,636 175,715 10,921
- 3,603 - 3,603

537,545 547,856 526,912 20,944
89,855 91,400 89,393 2,007
38,891 38,991 37,099 1,892
28,450 25,700 24,904 798
157,296 - 156,091 151,396 4,695

8,102,297 5,071,368

2,232,926

~




CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS -

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Recreation and Cuiture
Municipal zoo
Salaries
Personne! benefits
Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment
Capital outlays

Park maintenance
Salaries
Personnel benefits
Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment
Capital outlays

‘Total Recreation and Culture

Nondepartmental
Insurance
insurance

Miscelianeous
Personnel! benefits
Other operating expenses
Mayor's contingency

Total Nondepartmental

Debt Payments
Principal redemption
Interest
Total Debt Payments

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Other Financing Uses
Transfer to other funds
Total Other Financing Uses

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

o a aet ot s A e e - —

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 7828635 $ 773274 $ 709,445 $ 63829
217,085 224,838 197,288 27,550
395,244 434,484 441,797 (7,313)

- 5,460 - 5,460

- 800 - 900
1,394,964 1,438,956 1,348,530 90,426
199,693 215,654 208,255 7,398
92,640 92,640 87,397 5243
131,350 150,131 112,429 37,702

- 2,946 - 2,946
- - 34,200 {34,200)

423,683 461,371 442,282 19,089
1,818,647 1,900,327 1,790,812 109,515
478,340 493,704 473,965 19,739
478,340 493,704 473,965 19,739
2,000 2,000 - 2,000
3,600 3,600 3,448 1562
50,000 25,632 - 25,632
56,600 31,232 3,448 27,784
533,840 524,936 477,413 47,523
2,002,195 2,062,990 2,048,250 14,740
1,093,209 1,082,962 999,706 83,256
3,095,404 3,145,952 3,047,956 97,996
32,106,581 33,849,340 30,760,313 3,089,027
181,188 416,872 382,251 34,621
181,188 416,872 382,251 34,621
$32,287,769 $34,266,212 $31,142,564 $3,123.648
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ASSETS

Cash

Investment pool
Accounts receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Cash overdraft
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Reserved for encumbrances
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances {Deficit)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2010

Special Revenue Funds

. Curb, Water
Parking Gutter and and Sewer Community
Autharity Sidewalk Impact Grant Reimbursement Development
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
§ 83,624 $ 33,777 $3,421,156 $ - $ 91,592 3 8,922 $3,639,071
374,021 31,021 488,325 2,665 2,793 157 898,982
368 25,407 - 524,638 15,373 _6,300 572,087
§ 458,013 $ 90,205 $3,009,481 $ 527,304 $ 109,758 $ 15,379 $5,110,140
5 - $ - $ - $ 579,671 S - 3 - $ 579,671
65,277 - - 63,294 201 2,223 130,995
- - 1,108,464 - - - 1,108,464
65,277 - 1,108,464 642,965 201 2,223 1,819,130
78,515 37,588 - - 4,300 (13,156 130,559
314,221 52,617 2,801,017 {115,661) 108,257 - 3,180,451
382,736 90,205 2,801,017 __(115,661) 109,557 13,156 3,291,010
$ 458,013 $ 90,205 $3,909,481 $ 527,304 $ 109,758 $ 15379 $5.,110,140
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

REVENUES

Curb, gutter and sidewalk assessmaents
Fees

Earnings on investments

Grant revenues

Parking permits and meter collections
Rent and other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Salaries

Personnel benefits

Professional and skilled services
Supplies s

Other operating expenses
Capital outlays

Debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

Operating tfransfers in (out)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LJSES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Special Revenue Funds

i Curb, Water and
Parking Gutter and Sewsr Commiunity
Authority Sidewalk impact Grant Reimbursement  Development
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - $ 33,000 $ - 8 - 5 - $ - $ 33,000
- - 911,801 - 79,295 - 991,096
693 57 5,800 - 32 1 6,583
- - - 1,286,272 - 206,859 1,493,131
611,477 - - - - - 611477
8,882 - - - - - 8,882
621,052 33,057 917,601 1,286,272 79,327 206,860 3,144,169
186,285 - - 229,157 - 86,035 501,477
45,755 - . - 98,625 - 25,501 169,881
90,104 - - - - 19,332 109,436
6,474 - - - - 114,858 121,332
80,176 27,990 - 738,930 40,944 6,074 894,114
198,534 - - 157,500 - - 356,034
93,508 - - - - - 93,508
700,836 27,890 - 1,224,212 40,944 251,800 2,245,782
_ (79.784) 5,067 917,601 62,060 38,383 (44,940) 898,387
20,000 - {1,108,464). 33,621 - 155,630 (899,213)
20,000 - ~ (1,108,464} 33,621 - 155,630 {898,213)
(59,784) 5,067 (190,863) 95,681 38,383 110,690 (826)
452,520 85,138 2,991,880 (211,342) 71,174 {97,534) 3,291,836
$392,736 $ 90,205 $ 2,801,017 $ (115,661) $ 109,557 $ 13,158 $3,281,010
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PARKING AUTHORITY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Criginal Final Actual (Negative}
REVENUES :
Parking permits, fines, state grants, meters )
and Park 'n Shop $ 743,000 $ 743,000 $ 611,477 $ (131,523)
Eamings on investments . 8,000 8,000 693 (7,307)
Rent and other 10,000 10,000 8,882 (1,118}
Current surplus available 33,147 33,147 - {33,147)
Transfers 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
TOTAL REVENUES 814,147 814,147 641,052 {173,095}
EXPENDITURES
Salaries 187,389 188,039 186,285 1,754
Personnel benefits 49,264 50,564 45,755 4,809
Professional and skilled services 134,098 169,294 a0,104 78,190
Supplies ) 20,600 20,199 6,474 13,725
Other aperating expenses 90,287 94,412 80,176 14,236
Capital cutlays 239,000 315,457 198,534 116,923
Debt service: )
Principal redemption - - 53,400 (53,400)
Interest - - 40,108 {40,108)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 720,638 837,965 700,836 137,129
EXCESS {(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER}) EXPENDITURES $ 93,509 $ (23,818) (59,784) $ (35,966)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 452,520
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR ' $ 302,736
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
WATER AND SEWER IMPACT FUND
JUNE 39, 2010

Water Sewer
impact Impact
ASSETS
Cash $ 1,425,097 $ 1,996,059
Investment pool 264,326 223,999
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,689,423 $ 2,220,058
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds $ 345257 $ 763,207
Fund Balances: )
Undesignated 1,344,166 1,456,851
TOTAL LIABiLJTIES AND FUND BALANCES $1,689,423 $ 2,220,058

-59-

Total

$3,421,156

488,325

$ 3,900,481

$ 1,108,464

2,801,017

$ 3,908,481
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

WATER AND SEWER IMPACT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

REVENUES
Fees
Earnings on investments

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Operating expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)
Operating transfers out

TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENDITURES
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Water

Impact

$ 276,589
2,407

278,996

278,996

(345,257)
(345,257)

(66,261)
1,410,427

$ 1,344,166

-80-

Sewer
Impact

$ 635212
3,393

638,605

638,605

{763,207)
(763,207)

(124,602)
1,581,453

$ 1,456,851

Total

$ 911,801
5,800

917,601

917,601

{1,108,464)
{1,108,464)

(190,863}
2,991,880

$ 2,801,017



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND DEFICIT -

GRANT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

REVENUES
Federal $ 615532
Staie 636,900
County 17,392
Qthers 16,448
- TOTAL REVENUES 1,286,272
EXPENDITURES
Federal
Salaries 76,683
Personnel benefits 63,595
Operating expenses 452,842
Capital outlays 157,500
State
Salaries 66,182
Personnel benefits 16,443
Operating expenses 260,694
County
Salaries 720
Personnel benefits 280
Other
Salaries 85,572
Personnel benefits 18,307
Operating expenses 25,394
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,224,212
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 62,080
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating transfers in 33,621
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 33,621
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 95,681
FUND DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF YEAR . (211,342)
FUND DEFICIT, END OF YEAR $ (115,661)
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Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS -
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

Enterprise Funds

e g ke

Septage City
Treatment Marina
__Fund Fund Total
ASSETS )
Current Assets:
Cash $ - $ 21118 $ 21116
Investment pool - 2,181 2,181
Accounts receivable - 8,619 8,619
Due from other governmental units 89,572 - 89,572
Total Current Assets 89,572 31,916 121,488
Noncurrent assets: .
Capital assets
Construction-in-progress - 101,311 101,311
Land - 1,315,000 1,315,000
Buildings, equipment and improvements 128,292 1,665,254 1,793,546
Less accumulated depreciation (128,292) (1,339,325} (1,467,617)
Total Noncurrent Assets - 1,742,240 1,742,240
TOTAL ASSETS $ 89,572 $1,774,156 $1,863,728
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Cash overdraft $ 84,503 3 - $ 84,503
Accounts payable - 108,604 108,604
Due to other governmental units 5,850 - 5,850
Total Liabilities 90,353 108,604 198,957
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capital assets net of related debt - 1,742,240 1,742,240
Unrestricted {deficit} {781) 76,688) (77,469)
Total Net Assets (Deficit) (781) 1,665,552 1,664,771
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 89,572 $1,774,156 $1,863,728
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries

Personnel benefits

Professional and skilled services
Supplies

Other expenses

Bad debt expense

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION

Depreciation
NET OPERATING LOSS

NONOPERATING REVENUES
QOperating transfers in

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Enterprise Funds

Septage
Treatment

Fund

781

$  (781)

-63-

City
Marina
Fund

$ 44465
44 465

19,214
- 2,998
47,026
16,7561
33,052

15,081

(74,576)

53,614

{128,190)

173,000

173,000

44,810

1,620,742

$1.665,552

Total

$ 44465

44,465

19,214

2,998
47,026
16,751
33,052

119,041

(74,576)

53,614

(128,190)

173,000

173,000

44,810

1,619,961

$1,664,771
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
COMB!NING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -
‘ ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER AND SEWER FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Water Sewer
‘ Department Department Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $4,233,982 $ 7,835,888 $12,169,870

Penalties 25,204 49,074 | 74,278

Tapping charges and connection fees . 10,790 10,790

Assessments . 15,400 - 15,400

Sundry income 125,202 (16,023) 109,179

Pretreatment monitoring fee - 176,555 176,555
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 4,399,788 ’ 8,156,284 12,556,072
OPERATING EXPENSES .

Salaries . 1,507,268 2,248,469 3,755,737

Personnel benefits 776,945 1,294,395 2,071,340

Professional and skilled services 526,880 1,343,908 1,870,788

Supplies 607,650 601,441 1,209,091

Other operating expenses 569,627 1,379,496 1,849,123

Equipment 52,340 - 52,340
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,040,710 6,867,709 10,908,419
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 359,078 1,288,575 1,647,653
Depreciation 623,546 950,948 1,574,494
NET OPE]?ATING INCOME (LOSS) (264,468) . 337,627 - . 73,150

* NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Federal and state grants 1,439,126 686,752 2,125,878

Transfers from impact fees 345,257 763,207 1,108,464

Interest income ~ 12,735 12,735 25,470
 Interest expense . (115,138) _ (555,105) (670,243)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 1,681,980 907,589 . 2,589,569
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 1,417,512 - $1,245,216 2,662,728
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 58,264,885

$60,927 623



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES

Inspection fees

Water sales

Penalties

Front foot assessments.
Interest earned

Water income - sundry
Grants

Transfers from impact fees

. TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES
Engineering

Salaries
Personnel benefits
Professional and skilled services

.. Supplies

Other operating exbenses
~ Budget adjustment
Equipment
Total engineering

Billing and coflection

Salaries .’
‘Personnel benefits
Professional and skilled services
Supplies
Other operating expenses
Equipment ™
‘ Total billing and collection
Water treatment
" Salaries
‘Personneél benefits
Professional and skilled services
Supplies
- Other operating expenses
Equipment
Total water treatment

Continued on next page.

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER DEPARTMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
100,000 $ 100,000 $ 10,112 $ (89,888)
4,368,509 4,368,509 4,223,870 (144,639)
20,000 20,000 25,204 5,204

- - 15,400 15,400

50,000 50,000 12,735 (37,265)
255,718 255,718 125,202 - (130,516)
- - 1,439,126 1,439,126
441,614 441,614 345,257 (96,357)
5,235,841 5,235,841 6,198,006 061,085
319,226 330,137 327,795 2,342
126,969 128,930 119,160 9,770
524,920 692,040 227,502 464,538
33,394 - - - 38506 35,490 3,016
32,900 ' 34,865 30,072 4,793
- 100,000 - 100,000
703,635 434,627 - 434,627
1,741,044 1,759,105 740,019 1,019,086
81,138 81,590 81,590 -
20,471 36,507 36,507 -
57,450 53,564 33,134 20,430
28,700 31,874 25,858 6,016
19,775 19,968 - 13,552 6,416
- 3,720 - 3,720
217,534 227223 190,641 36,582
487,666 480,632 480,997 B.635"
175,079 283,624 © 283,624 -
187,280 237,244 v 207,630 29,614
526,515 689,915 386,888 303,027
500,885 460,717 367,242 93,475
510,000 604,673 9,500 505,173
2,387 425 2,765,805 . 1,735,881 1,029,924
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER DEPARTMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

b dns i < o e e e e n e im e B e N T .
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Variance with

‘ Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Distribution and storage - '
Salaries $ 509,923 $ 524,737 $ 515,163 $ 9,574
Personnet henefits 184,935 301,171 301,171 ce
. Professional and skilled services 58,877 56,672 38,535 18,137
Supplies 226,295 228,894 159,414 69,480
Other pperating expenses 29,279 36,766 30,999 5,767
Equipment 34,000 77,981 42,840 35,141
Total distribution and storage 1,053,309 1,226,221 1,088,122 138,099
Administration
Salaries 121,567 119,483 101,723 17,760
Personnel benefits . 43,318. 43,318 36,483 6,835
Professional and skilled services 15,260 22,334 20,079 2,255
. Other operating expenses 131,886 131,886 127,762 4,124
Total administration 312,031 317,021 286,047 30,974
Debt payments
- Principal redemption 222 479 222,576 - 222,576
Interest 133,260 133,164 115,138 18,026
Totat debt payments 355,739 355,740 115,138 240,602
TOTAL EXPENSES 6,067,082 6,651,115 4,155,848 2,495,267
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES BEFORE .
DEPRECIATION {831,241) (1,415,274) 2,041,058 3,456,332
Depreciation and amortization - - 623,246 {623,546)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ {831,241) $(1,415,274) $ 1,417,512 $2,832,786
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REVENUES
Sewer charges
Sewer charges-urban services
Penalties
Prefreatment monitoring fees
Interest eamed
Sewer income - sundry

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER DEPARTMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance with

Tapping charges and connection fees

Transfers from impact fees
Grants

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES
Engineering
Salaries
* Personnel benefits
Professional and skilled services
Supplies - -
- Other operating expenses
Budget adjustment
Equipment
Tolal engineering
Billing and collection
Salaries
Personnel benefits
Professional and skilled services
Supplies -
Other operating expenses
Total billing and collection

Wastewater treatment
Salaries
Personne! benefits
Professional and skilled services
Supplies
Other operating expenses
Equipment
Total wastewater treatment

Continued on next page.

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Paositive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
$ 7,966,533 $ 7,966,533 $ 7,610,121 $ (356,412)
260,000 260,000 325,767 65,767
40,000 40,000 49,074 9,074
181,039 181,039 176,555 (4,484)
50,000 50,000 12,735 {37,265)
175,818 175,818 (16,023) {191,841)
- - 10,790 10,790
987,207 987,207 763,207 (224,000)
- - 686,752 686,752
9,660,597 9,660,597 9,618,978 {41,619)
485,338 500,887 497,489 3,398
176,606 194,711 194,711 -
275,500 993,350 R 116,355 876,995
132,814 36,035 31,099 4,936
51,500 50,634 44,021 6,613
- 125,000 - 125,000
630,000 302,980 - 302,980
1,651,758 2,203,597 883,675 1,319,922
"137,784 138,373 138,373 -
49,408 91,154 91,154 -
4,500 6,000 ) - 6,000
2,150 . 1,975 683 1,292
25,675 27,600 23,932 3,668
219,517 265,102 254,142 10,960
1,124,686 1,049,484 1,016,894 32,590
492,879 642,829 642,829 -
1,164,050 1,078,182 431,011 647,171
685,137 1,135,929 498,629 637,300
1,099,895 1,166,592 1,059,692 106,800
314,000 404,881 - 404,881
4,876,647 5,477,897 3,649,055 1,828 842
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER DEPARTMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
o Criginal Final Actual {Negative)
Maintenance and repair .
Salaries $ 394,049 $ 408,206 $ 385235 % 21,061
Personnel benefits 179,306 260,815 260,815 ' -
Professional and skilled services 185,101 373,156 335,615 37,541
Supplies 72,950 57,588 55,185 2,403
Other operating expenses 58,680 87,445 61,028 6,417
Total maintenance and repair 890,086 1,165,300 1,097,878 67,422
Pretreatmént monitoring .
Salaries: 08,649 97,847 89,541 8,306
Personne! benefits 39,020 61,717 61,717 -
Professional and skilled services 20,750 20,350 12,083 8,257
Supplies ) 16,450 16,450 15,845 605
Other operating expenses 5,622 6,017 4,071 1,946
Total pretreatment monitoring : 180,491 202,381 183,267 19,114
Administration
' Salaries 144,507 143,505 120,937 22,568
. Personnel benefiis 50,823 50,823 43,169 7.654
Professional and skilled services 68,780 463,219 448,834 14,385
Other operating expenses 204217 204,217 186,752 17,465 -
. Total administration 468,327 861,764 799,692 62,072
Debt payments
Principal redemption 2,809,130 2,818,383 T 2,818,383
" Interest 601,999 603,027 555,105 47,922
~ Total debt payments 3,411,129 3,421,410 555,105 2,866,305
TOTAL EXPENSES 11,697,955 13,597 451 7,422 814 6,174,637
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES BEFORE
DEPRECIATION {2,037,358) {3,936,854) 2,196,164 6,133,018
Depreciation - - 950,248 {950,948)
. CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ (2,037,358) $ (3,936,854) $ 1,245216 $ 5,182,070




CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ENTERPRISE FUND - CITY MARINA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance
with Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative}
. OPERATING REVENUES . : .
Slip rentals $ 35,000 $ 35,000 $ 34,061 $  (939)
Electric fees . - ' - 9,070 9,670
Miscellaneous 19,662 19,662 1,334 _(18,328)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES : 54,662 54,662 44,465 {10,187)
OPERATING EXPENSES : .
Salaries 27,040 19,775 19,214 561
Personnel benefits 5,849 4,271 2,998, 1,273
Professional and skilled services 13,800 51,318 47,026 4,292
Supplies 8,675 17,670 16,751 819
Other services and charges 42,298 38,646 33,052 5,594
Capital outlays - - 106,643" - 106,643
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 97,662 - 238,323 119,041 119,282
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE
DEPRECIATION {43,000) (183,661) (74,576) 109,085
Depreciation - - 53,614 (53,614).
NET OPERATFNG LOSS (43,000) {183,661) (128,190} 55,471
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ‘
Operating transfer in 43,000 173,000 173,000 -
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 43,000 173,000 173,000 -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS s - $(10,661) $ 44,810 $ 55471
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE {UNAUDITED)

JUNE 30, 2010
General Fund
Personal

Levy Year Total Real Property Property Corporations
2010 $ 1,126,674 $ 362,646 $ 6,263 $ 757,765
2009 188,172 72,870 1,818 113,484
2008 183,753 64,688 2,831 116,234
2007 149,033 50,788 1,451 96,794
2006 and prior 555,122 268,980 33,030 253,112
2,202,754 819,872 45,393 1,337,389

Less allowance for uncollectibles (623,307) - {38,221) (585,088)
$ 752,303

$ 1,579,447 $ 819,972 § 7172

NOTE: Included in the above are deferred taxes of $471,213.
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o CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF BONDED INDEBTEDNESS (UNAUDITED)

[

JUNE 30, 2010

. Interest .
Description of bonds Rate Dates Bond Date Authorized Qutstanding ", Regquirements to June 3¢, 2011 :
and purpose of issue  (Percent) Payable Maturities Issued Total Issue 06/30/2010 Principal interest Payable At
General obligation bonds .
Public Improvement Bonds of 1994 6; 4.1; 4, 4.15; 02/01/1984  § 6,875,000 $ 2,000,000 § 525,000 $ 101,156 Bank of New York
4.35; 4.5; 4.6,
4.7.4.8;4.9, ‘
5, 5.125 F&A1 201/95-14
Public Improvement Bonds of 1999 438 J&D1 6/1/2044 06/18/1999 4,860,000 1,621,408 379,343 67,062 Bank of America
Public Improvement Bonds of 2001 477 M & N1 5/1/02-21 05/01/2001 1,201,900 785,000 58,700 37,905 M&T Bank
Maryland Water Quality Financing
Administration Revolving Loan Fund ) :
‘Revenue Bonds 4.884 M & 31 8/1/91-11 03/01/1990 76,148 7,454 3,638 586 MD Water Quality Fin.
Maryland Water Quality Financing
Administration 4,894 M & 81 9/1/91-11 03/01/199¢ 2,848,109 418,100 204,545 30,230 MD Water Quality Fin.
Water Quality Bond of 2003 0.40 F&Al 8/1/03-24 04/17/2003 3,163,381 2,240,727 155,932 16,798 MD Dept Envircnment
Infrastructure Bond of 2003 45-20 M & N1 3/1/03-23 03/01/2003 5,614,000 4,046,000 248,300 161,884 MET Bank
Public Improvement Bonds of 2004 20-48 M & N1 5/1/05-24 04/22/2004 5,318,000 3,827,300 269,600 161,948 M&T Bank
Water Quality Bond of 2005 0.40 F &A1 2/1/09-28 09/29/2005 42,009,341 37,506,353 2,037,971 251,654 . MD Water Quality Fin.
Public Improvement Bonds of 2007 4.03 A&O1 4/1/08-27  04M12/2007 '4.950,000 . 4,207,500 247,500 189,532 Suntrust Leasing Corp.
Public Improvement Bonds of 2008 4.09 F & A1 2/1/09-28 01/22/2008 3,605,000 3,300,00C 160,000 134,97¢ Suntrust Equip &
Leasing Corp
Public Improvement Bonds of 2000 . 3.78 M & N1 5/1/10-26  11/06/2009 2,600,000 2,600,000 173,333 96,351 Hebron Savings Bank
Maryland Water Quality Bond (ARRA) 0 A&F1 81112730 12/04/2009 2,756,400 2,756,400 - - MD Water Quality Fin.
Maryland Energy Administration 0 S&M1  8/1/M11-3/13  12/04/2000 258,740 258,740 - - MD Water Quality Fin.
$ 4,460,862 $ 1,230,076

S7 -

$65,575,982
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Fiscal -

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BY SOURCE {UNAUDITED)

CITY OF SALISBURY MARYLAND

FIVE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues
Year Local State Licenses from Use of Revenue Service
Ended Property Income Shared and Finesand * Money and from Other Charges Surplus
Juns 30 Taxes Taxes Taxes Permits Forfeitures Propeity Agencies and other Total Apprapriated
2010 $21,546,160 $1,537,197 $ 856,110 $ 663,585 $ 109,267 $ 37,697 § 1,640,400 - § 3,703,987 $ 30,094,403 $ 225520
' 71.60 % 511 % 284 % 221 % 036 % 0.13 % 5.45 % 1231 % 100.00 %
2009 20,256,196 1,673,627 2,004,180 862,143 105,234 169,970 1,776,385 3,392,935 30,240,670 1,622,353
’ 66.98 5.53 6.63 2.85 0.35 0.56 5.87 11.22 100.00
2008 19,553,399 1,863,022 2,224,103 1,037,604 104,544 374,410 1,826,485 3,256,356 30,239,923 1,280,950
- 64.66 6.16 7.35 3.43 0.35 1.24 6.04 10.77 100.00
2007 - 16,038,834 1,716,039 2,247,018 | 1,158,394 83,328 548,071 - 1,853,060 2,862,909 .26,508,653 1,004,028
60.50 6.47 B8.48 4.37 0.31 2.07 6.99 10.80 100.00
- 2008 . 14,856,089 1,547,575 2,046,478 1,214,955 93,731 324,871 1,529,849 3,227,920 24,841,468 . 999,443
59.80 8.24 4.89 .0.38 1.31 6.16 12.99 100.00

6.23
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND .
'GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION* (UNAUDITED)

FIVE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

5.04

-73-

Fiscal
Year - : Department of Public Works
Ended General : Cther Supervision & Miscellaneous
June 3¢ Govemment - Police Fire Safely Engineering  Highways Sanitation Recreation & Transfers Total
2010 $2,254,947  $9,368,939 '$7,364,032 $1,384,845 $2,053.826 ’ 5-1,596,2922' $1,421,251 $1,790,812 $3,007,620 § 31,142,564
7.24 % 3008 % . 2385 % 4.45 % 6.59 % 513 % 456 % 575 % 1266 % 100.00
2009 2,455,685 9,567,265 7,168,672 1,437,948 1,926,123 1,437,823 1,733,812 1,732,924 3,735,856 31,186,108
7.87 30.67 22.98 4.61 6.17 - 4.61 5.56 5.55 11.98 100.00
2008 2,468,488 9,366,404 5,690,087 1,383,544 2,154,483 1 ,402,1 72 1,651,054 1,500,422 2,940,585 28,448,239
8.68 32.93 19.65 4.79 - 7.57 4.93 5.80 531 10.34 100.00
2007 2,279,180 8,400,344 5,324,946 1,363,485 2,285,254 1,235,828 1,435,503 1,545,521 2,176,069 26,055,130
8.75 32.28 20.44 5.23 877 4.74 5.51 5.93 8.36 100.00
2008 2,087,591 8,045,350 6,044,072 '1.,277,396 1,878,712 1,189,938 1,465,253 1,491,098 1,870,828 25,348,238
8.24 31.74 23.84 7.40 4.69 5.78 5.88 7.38 10C.00

%



CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED}
- FIVE YEARS-ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Fiscal . i " .
Year : Revenue ; Expenditures . -
Ended _ Water . Other. Sewer Other - " "Burplus Capital - Debt -

June 30 Charges Water Charges Sewer Total Appropriated Operations Outlays Service Depreciation Total
2010 $f4,223.-8.70 $175,918 $7,935,888 $220,386 $:I 2,556,072 $f,287,628 $10,409,485 $ 52,340 $670,243 $1,574,494 $12,708,562
2009 3,821,506 292,905 7,075,001 287,400 11,476,812 2,868,598 10,070,820 89,809 622,396 , 1,553,952 12,336,977

2008 3,516,762 417,908 - 6,607,152 . 247,717 -~ 10,789,537 3,100,587 .. B,649.418 6,778 541,292 1,564,896 10,762,384
2007 3,560,733 611,841 6,670,475 412,109 .11,255,158 910,409 8,153,762 2,443,776 352,754 ..1,985,282 12,815,574
2006 3,537,226 331,581 6,564,089 . 294,475 -10,727,371 1,238,804 7,553,384 126,815 232.095 {'1,762,126 9,674,420

In addition, debt service includes only interest expense (no principal payments).
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND (UNAUDITED)

_ GENERAL AND SINKING FUND - PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (UNAUDITED)

FIVE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Outstanding
Fiscal Total - Percent of Total Delinguent
Year General Current © Levy Delinquent Total Collections as Qutstanding Taxes as a
Ended Assessable Sinking - Tax Collected in Tax Tax a Percent of Delinquent - Percent of
June 30 Basis Tax Levy Collections Year pf Levy Coliections Collections Current Levy Taxes Current Levy
2010 $ 2,332,854,978 $22,548910 $ 21,142,704 9376 %  $ 159,961 $ 21,299,665 9446 %  $1.731,542 768 %
2008 2,300,114,378 122,307,156 19,672,764 88.19 342,121 20,014,885 | 89.72 804,170 3.60
2008 2,079,779;681 20,663,791 18,735,024 90.67 608,198 19,343,222 93.61 918,478 - 4.44
2007 1,832,493,066 16,350,148 15,397,454 '94.17 435,818 15,833,272 96.84 1,079,022 6.60
2006 1,679,233,268 15,130,283 14,252,520 94.20 '468.569 14,721,089 97.30 1,177,569 778
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CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND
GENERAL AND SINKING FUND - ASSESSED VALUES AND DEBT RATIOS (UNAUDITED)
FIVE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

' ' General Ratio ’ Total Ratio
Fiscal Assessed Values Obligation - G, Q. Debt Expenditures G. O. Debt
Year Real Propert Corporaticns Debt to Legal Legal Total General Fund Service to
Ended Full and Partial Personal " Rajircads and Notes Assessed Dabt Debt G. Q. Debt and Total
June 30 Yeaar Property Ordinary and Uiilitles Total Payable Vailues Limit Margin Service - Water & Sewer  Expenditures
2010 $2,050,805,168 $2,697,220 $230,973,950 $48,378.640 $2,332,854,978 $67,471,893 1.5768 $110,237,188 $42.7§5.295 $5,719,527 $42,796,632 0.134
2008 2,015,985,078 - 2,966,990 228,511,610 52,650,700 2,300,114,378 66,092,298 1.5468 109,052,333 42,960,035 5,462,516 42,729,346 0.128
2008 1,782,450,011 3,215,350 230,495,480 63,618,840 2,079,779,681 70,523,939 0.ﬁ339 : 101,030,967 30,507,028 5,758,606 38,168,578 0.151
2007 1,568,315,846 3,719,000 214,614,320 55,843,900 . 1,832,493,066 69,101,295 0.0377 89,750,356 20,649,061 3,366,351 38,627,062 0.087
2006 1,414,460,366 3,678,190 206,875,820 54,218,880 1,679,233,266 66,209,366 0;0394 - 83,055,705 16,846,339 3,048,104 34,819,264 0.088
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